
 

 

   
 
 
 

                                     Date: August 28, 2025
 

To, 
The Listing Compliance Department 
National Stock Exchange of India Limited 
Exchange Plaza, Bandra Kurla Complex 
Bandra (E), Mumbai - 400051 
Maharashtra, India 

  
Company Trading Symbol: KHFM 
ISIN: INE00UG01014 
 
Subject: Annual Report for the Financial Year 2024-2025 
 
Re: Regulations 30 and 34 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 
 
Dear Sir/Madam, 
 
Pursuant to Regulation 34(1) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, we are submitting herewith the Annual Report of the Company for the financial year 
ended March 31, 2025, together with the Notice convening the 19th Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) 
scheduled to be held on Friday, September 26, 2025, from 4:00 p.m. (IST) onwards, through Video 
Conferencing (“VC”) / Other Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM”). 
 
The Annual Report contains the Board’s Report with its annexures and other statutory disclosures, the 
Management Discussion and Analysis Report, the audited standalone and consolidated financial 
statements for the year ended March 31, 2025, along with the respective Auditors’ Reports, as well as 
the Notice of the AGM accompanied by the explanatory statement pursuant to Section 102 of the 
Companies Act, 2013. The Annual Report has been dispatched electronically to all members whose 
email addresses are registered with the Company/Depositories, in compliance with the applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, and the relevant circulars 
issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and SEBI. 
 
You are requested to take the above intimation on records. 
 
Thanking You. 
 
 
For KHFM HOSPITALITY & FACILITY MANAGEMENT SERVICES LIMITED 
 
 
 
Ritesh K Mishra 
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 
ICSI Membership No.: A76039 
 
Place: Mumbai 
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

• Company: KHFM Hospitality and Facility 

Management Services Limited 

• CIN: L74930MH2006PLC159290 

• ISIN: INE00UG01014 

• Investor Relations Email ID: cs@khfm.in  

• Equity Shares Listed on: NSE (SME Platform) 

• Date of Listing: April 12, 2019 

• NSE Symbol: KHFM 

REGISTERED OFFICE 

• 01, Nirma Plaza, Makhwana Road, Marol Naka, 

Andheri (East), Mumbai – 400059  

• Website: www.khfm.in 

• Email: cs@khfm.in / sales@khfm.in 

• Tel: +91 22 6977 4300 

• Fax: +91 22 2859 1483 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

• Mr. Ravindra Hegde – Managing Director 

• Mrs. Sujata Hegde – Director & CFO 

• Mr. Saurav Hegde – Director 

• Mr. Girish Ramnani – Independent Director 

• Mr. Prabhakar Patil – Independent Director 

• Mr. Rudra Narayan Kar – Additional 

(Independent) Director 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 

• Mr. Girish Ramnani – Chairman 

• Mr. Rudra Narayan Kar – Member 

• Mr. Ravindra Hegde – Member 

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION 

COMMITTEE 

• Mr. Prabhakar Patil – Chairman 

• Mr. Girish Ramnani – Member 

• Mr. Rudra Narayan Kar – Member 

 

STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIP 

COMMITTEE 

• Mr. Prabhakar Patil – Chairman 

• Mrs. Sujata Hegde – Member 

• Mr. Saurav Hegde – Member 

COMPANY SECRETARY & COMPLIANCE 

OFFICER 

• Mr. Akash Bate (14.05.2024 – 20.02.2025) 

• Mr. Ritesh K. Mishra (W.E.F. 30.04.2025) 

STATUTORY AUDITOR 

• M/s YRKDAJ & Associates LLP, Chartered 

Accountants  

• 612, Rajhans Helix 3, Old Shreyas Cinema, LBS 

Marg, Ghatkopar West, Mumbai – 400086 

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR 

• M/s Mishra & Associates Practising Company 

Secretaries 

• B/31, 6th Floor, Chaddha Apartment, Teli Galli 

Cross Lane, Andheri (East), Mumbai – 400069 

INTERNAL AUDITOR 

• M/s C.C. Talreja & Co. Chartered Accountants 

• Shop No. 15, Mona Market, Bewas Chowk Road, 

Ulhasnagar – 421001 

REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER AGENTS  

• M/s Bigshare Services Private Limited 

• S6-2 - 6th floor Pinnacle Business Park, Mahakali 

Caves Road, Andheri (East), Mumbai – 400093 

BANKERS 

• Apna Sahakari Bank 

• Bank of India  

• State Bank of India 
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 
 

 

Mr. Ravindra Malinga Hegde 

Managing Director | DIN: 01821002 

Mr. Ravindra Hegde is the Promoter and Managing Director of the Company. He holds a Bachelor’s degree in 

Science (Chemistry) from the University of Mumbai. He has undergone specialised training in Facility Management 

and Pest Management in the United States and in pest entomology at the Indian Grain Institute, Hapur. He is a 

member of the Indian Pest Control Association. In recognition of his entrepreneurial contributions, he was conferred 

with the Shri Rajiv Gandhi Shiromani Award on August 22, 2010. 

He is a founding member and subscriber to the Memorandum of Association of the Company and has been on the 

Board since incorporation. With over 35 years of experience in the facility and hospitality management industry, Mr. 

Hegde is responsible for providing strategic leadership and overseeing the overall operations and growth of the 

Company. 

 

Mrs. Sujata Ravindra Hegde 

Director & Chief Financial Officer | DIN: 01829352 

Mrs. Sujata Ravindra Hegde is the Promoter, Director and Chief Financial Officer of the Company. She pursued her 

Higher Secondary Education from Sheth Anandilal Podar Junior College in 1988. She has been associated with the 

Company since its inception and is also one of the subscribers to the Memorandum of Association. 

With over 22 years of experience in finance, administration and internal controls, she is responsible for overseeing 

the Company’s financial affairs and administrative functions. She also ensures quality control in service delivery and 

compliance with ISO standards across operational sites. 

 

Mr. Saurav Ravindra Hegde 

Director | DIN: 08116567 

Mr. Saurav Hegde is the Director of the Company. He holds a Bachelor’s degree in Science (Hospitality) from D.Y. 

Patil University. He was appointed to the Board on April 23, 2018. 

He is involved in the strategic and operational aspects of the business and brings a modern and digital perspective to 

the Company’s growth. He also contributes to the branding and technology initiatives of the organisation. 

 

Mr. Girish Ramnani 

Independent Director | DIN: 09362318 

Mr. Girish Ramnani is an Independent Director of the Company. He is a Chartered Accountant and has been a 

member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) since 1998. He has over 23 years of experience in 

audit and assurance, taxation, regulatory compliance and process advisory services. 
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He has been practising independently since 1998 and has advised clients across sectors on regulatory frameworks, 

internal controls and financial structuring. He brings strong financial acumen and governance oversight to the Board. 

 

Mr. Rudra Narayan Kar 

Additional (Independent) Director | DIN: 10898326 

Mr. Rudra Narayan Kar is an Additional (Independent) Director of the Company. He is a seasoned finance 

professional with over 35 years of experience across banking, financial markets, foreign exchange, sovereign debt 

and reserves management. He retired as Chief General Manager from the Reserve Bank of India, where he held key 

roles in policymaking, market regulation and supervision of banks and NBFCs. 

He also served as RBI’s Nominee Director on the Boards of State Bank of Hyderabad and Syndicate Bank. From 

2017 to 2023, he served as the founding Chief Executive Officer of Financial Benchmarks India Pvt. Ltd. (FBIL), 

where he led the development of regulated benchmarks in interest rates, foreign exchange and fixed income markets. 

He holds an M.S. in Finance from the University of Illinois, USA and postgraduate degrees in Finance and Political 

Science. 

 

Mr. Prabhakar R. Patil 

Independent Director | DIN: 00377406 

Mr. Prabhakar R. Patil is an Independent Director of the Company. He is currently associated with Bonanza Portfolio 

Ltd. as Chief Corporate Advisor. He previously served as Adjunct Professor at IIM Mumbai from June 2022 to 

December 2024. He superannuated as Chief General Manager at the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) 

in February 2022, where he headed the Department of Economic and Policy Analysis and was responsible for 

research and key publications. 

He joined SEBI in 1997 and was involved in policy research and publications such as the Annual Report, Monthly 

Bulletin and Handbook of Statistics in the Securities Market. He also served on deputation as Director at the Forward 

Markets Commission (FMC) from 2005 to 2009, where he led risk management and regulatory coordination. Mr. 

Patil holds a Ph.D. in Economics from IIT Bombay, an M.A. in Econometrics from S.V. University and a B.A. in 

Mathematics, Economics and Statistics from Government Arts College, Anantapuram, where he was a Gold 

Medallist. 

 

Mr. Ritesh K. Mishra 

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer | ICSI Membership No: A76039 

Mr. Ritesh K. Mishra is the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company. He is an Associate Member 

of the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI) and holds a Bachelor’s degree in Commerce from Thakur 

College of Science and Commerce. 

He has previously been associated with Reliance Asset Reconstruction Company Limited. He possesses a sound 

academic and professional background in corporate laws, governance and regulatory frameworks. His professional 

journey reflects a consistent focus on corporate compliance, stakeholder coordination and governance standards. He 

brings a structured and committed approach to the Company’s secretarial and compliance functions. 
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’S MESSAGE 

 
Dear Shareholders, 

I am pleased to present the 19th Annual Report of KHFM 

Hospitality and Facility Management Services Limited for the 

financial year ended March 31, 2025. This year has been marked 

by steady progress, continued focus on operational discipline, 

and strategic realignment across key areas of our business. 

Despite external uncertainties and delayed client decisions in 

certain sectors, we have remained resilient and forward-looking 

in our approach. 

We strengthened our capital base during the year through a 

preferential allotment of 8,37,000 equity shares to promoter and 

public investors. In addition, 7,54,141 convertible warrants, 

forming part of the previously approved preferential issue of 

22,32,000 warrants, were exercised and converted into an 

equivalent number of equity shares during the year. These 

actions reflect the promoter group’s continued confidence in the 

Company’s long-term vision and provide greater financial 

flexibility to invest in business growth, talent development and 

technology-driven excellence. 

We continued to maintain strong service continuity across our client base. Our operational teams ensured consistent 

delivery despite project transitions and varied onboarding schedules. Profitability improved as a result of cost 

optimisation, tighter resource controls and process efficiency. The business maintained its core values of 

professionalism, client responsiveness and disciplined execution.  

I must also acknowledge the unwavering dedication of our staff and associates. Their tireless efforts have not only 

sustained the continuity of our operations but have also earned us the trust and goodwill of our clients. It is their 

commitment on the ground that brings our service standards to life and upholds the reputation KHFM has built over 

the years. I am equally grateful to our leadership team, whose vision, adaptability and hands-on guidance have been 

instrumental in steering the Company forward during a year of transition and growth. 

The Macro Picture 

India’s facility management industry continues to transition into a more organised and professionally managed sector. 

Businesses and institutions are increasingly shifting from in-house management models to integrated outsourced 

services that deliver higher efficiency, compliance and transparency. The demand is growing not only from traditional 

segments like commercial buildings and public infrastructure but also from emerging spaces such as logistics hubs, 

educational campuses and smart city projects. 

The industry’s shift towards bundled services that include cleaning, maintenance, security, energy management and 

façade upkeep is becoming more pronounced. Clients are prioritising service partners who can deliver consistent 

standards across functions and geographies. KHFM is well positioned to address this demand with its trained 

workforce, integrated delivery capabilities and proven execution track record. 

India’s facility management market is poised for sustained growth, driven by increasing urbanisation, infrastructure 

development and the growing preference for integrated outsourced services across sectors. According to a report, the 

market is projected to grow at a compound annual growth rate of approximately 7.4 percent between 2025 and 2030. 

While this growth reflects the industry’s ongoing transition from fragmented, unorganised models to professional 
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service structures, it also highlights the significant opportunity for organised players to expand their footprint and 

improve service standards. KHFM remains strategically positioned to leverage this trend with its trained workforce, 

scalable operations and long-standing industry experience. 

Your Company’s Performance 

During the year ended March 31, 2025, your Company recorded a Standalone Revenue from Operations of Rs. 

9,518.25 lakh, as compared to Rs. 10,744.51 lakh in the previous year. The EBITDA (including other income) stood 

at Rs. 1,092.26 lakh as against Rs. 1,042.27 lakh in the previous year. The Standalone Profit Before Tax for the year 

under review amounted to Rs. 479.19 lakh, compared to Rs. 476.07 lakh in the previous financial year. 

We secured new work orders valued at approximately Rs. 7,927.82 lakh during the year, reaffirming our strong 

market presence and execution capabilities. 

We have made meaningful progress in adopting automation and digital integration across our project sites. Real-time 

monitoring tools, automated attendance and paperless reporting were rolled out at several high-volume locations. 

These initiatives enhanced service reliability, reduced operational delays and improved our response time. 

Additionally, we expanded into new verticals including façade maintenance, sustainable deep cleaning, and ESG-

focused solutions, reflecting our intent to diversify and future-proof our portfolio. 

Our employees continue to be the cornerstone of KHFM’s success. Throughout the year, we invested in workforce 

training, safety enhancements and team engagement. Our HR and Operations functions worked together to strengthen 

worksite governance and improve operational resilience. I extend my sincere appreciation to our team members for 

their unwavering dedication and professionalism. 

We also continued to enhance our corporate governance framework. The Board of Directors and its Committees 

provided strategic oversight across financial, operational and compliance matters. Governance at KHFM is embedded 

in our daily processes and we remain committed to ensuring transparency, accountability and fairness in all our 

stakeholder interactions. 

As we enter FY 2025–26, we are optimistic about the growth outlook for the industry and confident in our ability to 

harness the opportunities ahead. Our strategic priorities include expanding our presence in high-growth markets, 

strengthening our position in institutional and infrastructure driven segments and deepening our use of digital tools 

to deliver smarter, safer and more efficient services. We will continue to focus on building an agile, future-ready 

organisation driven by execution excellence and stakeholder alignment. 

I would like to thank our clients, employees, business partners, regulators and especially our shareholders for their 

continued support and trust. Together, we look forward to achieving new milestones and shaping a stronger, more 

sustainable future for KHFM. 
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KHFM HOSPITALITY AND FACILITY MANAGEMENT SERVICES LIMITED 

CIN: L74930MH2006PLC159290 

Registered Office: 01, Nirma Plaza, Makhwana Road, Marol Naka, Andheri (East) Mumbai– 400059 

Tel: +91 22 2851 1234 Fax: +91 22 2859 1483 

Website: www.khfm.in | Email: cs@khfm.in  

 

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

 

Notice is hereby given that the 19th Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Members of KHFM Hospitality and 

Facility Management Services Limited will be held on Friday, September 26, 2025 at 04:00 P.M. (IST) through 

Video Conferencing (“VC”)/Other Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM”) to transact the following business: 

 

ORDINARY BUSINESS:  

1. To receive, consider and adopt: 

(a) the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 

2025, together with the report of the Board and Auditors’ thereon; and 

(b) the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 

2025 together with the report of the Auditors’ thereon. 

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mrs. Sujata Ravindra Hegde (DIN: 01829352), who retires by rotation and, 

being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment. 

SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

3. To appoint Mr. Rudra Narayan Kar (DIN: 10898326) as an independent director  

 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an 

Ordinary Resolution: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152, and 160 read with Schedule IV 

and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the Companies 

(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, including any statutory modification(s) or re-

enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force, and pursuant to the applicable provisions of the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to time, Mr. Rudra 

Narayan Kar (DIN: 10898326), who was appointed as an Additional (Independent) Director of the Company 

by the Board of Directors with effect from January 09, 2025, and who holds office up to the date of this Annual 

General Meeting and has submitted a declaration that he meets the criteria of independence as prescribed under 

Section 149(6) of the Act, be and is hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the Company, not liable 

to retire by rotation, to hold office for a term of five (5) consecutive years commencing from January 09, 

2025.” 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors (including any Committee thereof) be and is hereby 

authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things, and to take all such steps as may be necessary, proper 

or expedient to give effect to this resolution, including filing of necessary forms with the Registrar of 
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Companies, and to delegate all or any of its powers herein conferred to any Director(s), Officer(s), or 

Authorised Representative(s) of the Company, as may be deemed necessary.” 

 

 

 

 

By order of the Board of Directors 

KHFM Hospitality and Facility Management Services Limited 

 

 

Sd/- 

Ritesh K. Mishra 

Company Secretary and Compliance Officer 

ICSI Membership No: A76039 

 

 

Date: August 28, 2025 

Place: Mumbai 
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NOTES:  

 

1. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), as amended setting 

out the material facts concerning the business under Item No. 3 of this Notice is annexed as Annexure II.  

2. Information as required under Regulation 36 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) and Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (SS–2) issued 

by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (“ICSI”), in respect of the Director retiring by rotation and 

seeking re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”), along with the details of Directors proposed 

to be appointed or re-appointed, including their qualifications, areas of expertise, directorships held in other 

companies, membership or chairmanship of Board committees, shareholding in the Company and inter-se 

relationships with other Directors, is provided in Annexure III to this Notice. 

3. This AGM is being convened through Video Conference (“VC”) or Other Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM”) 

without the physical presence of the Members at a common venue, in compliance with the applicable 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the rules made thereunder, read with the General 

Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, General Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, General 

Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020, General Circular No. 02/2021 dated January 13, 2021, General 

Circular No. 19/2021 dated December 08, 2021, General Circular No. 21/2021 dated December 14, 2021, 

General Circular No. 02/2022 dated May 05, 2022, General Circular No. 10/2022 dated December 28, 2022, 

General Circular No. 09/2023 dated September 25, 2023, and General Circular No. 09/2024 dated September 

19, 2024 (collectively referred to as “MCA Circulars”) issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA). 

This is also in accordance with SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 dated May 12, 2020, 

SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11 dated January 15, 2021, SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2022/62 dated 

May 13, 2022, SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/4 dated January 05, 2023, SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD-PoD-

2/P/CIR/2023/167 dated October 07, 2023, and SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD-PoD-2/P/CIR/2024/133 dated October 

03, 2024 (collectively referred to as “SEBI Circulars”) issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(“SEBI”), permitting the conduct of general meetings through electronic means. 

4. In compliance with the applicable provisions of the Act, the SEBI Listing Regulations, the MCA Circulars, 

the SEBI Circulars and the Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the ICSI, the 19th AGM 

of the Company will be held through VC/OAVM on Friday, September 26, 2025, at 04:00 P.M. (IST). The 

proceedings of the AGM shall be deemed to be conducted at the Registered Office of the Company at 01, 

Nirma Plaza, Makhwana Road, Marol Naka, Andheri (East) Mumbai – 400059. 

5. The Notice of the AGM and the Annual Report for FY 2024-25 are being sent only by electronic mode to 

Members whose email addresses are registered with the Company / Registrar and Transfer Agent / Depositories 

/ Depository Participants. A separate letter will be sent to Members who have not registered their e-mail 

addresses, providing the web-link and exact path where complete Annual Report (including the Notice of the 

AGM) is available.  

6. Members may write to cs@khfm.in or to the RTA, Bigshare Services Private Limited, quoting their Folio 

No./DP ID–Client ID, to request a physical copy of the Annual Report. 

7. Members may note that the Notice and Annual Report for FY 2024-25 will also be available on the Company’s 

website at www.khfm.in, website of the National Stock Exchange of India Limited at www.nseindia.com and 

also on the website of Bigshare Services Private Limited at www.Bigshareonline.com 

8. In order to enable the Company to promptly send the general meeting notices, Annual Reports and other 

shareholders communications, in electronic form, Members are requested to register/update their email 

addresses with their respective Depository Participants. 

12

mailto:cs@khfm.in
http://www.bigshareonline.com/


 

Annual Report 2024-25  
 
9. To support the Green Initiative in Corporate Governance, Members are encouraged to register their email 

addresses with their Depository Participants or with the Company’s RTA, Bigshare Services Private Limited, 

for receiving communications from the Company in electronic mode. 

10. The Company has engaged the services of Bigshare Services Private Limited, Registrar and Transfer Agent as 

the authorised agency for facilitating the conduct of the e-AGM and providing remote e-voting and e-voting 

facility during the AGM. 

11. As the AGM is being convened through VC/OAVM in accordance with the MCA Circulars read with SEBI 

Circulars, the physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for the 

appointment of proxies by Members will not be available for this AGM, and hence, the proxy form, attendance 

slip, and route map of the AGM are not annexed to this Notice. 

12. Participation of Members through VC/OAVM shall be reckoned for the purpose of quorum for the AGM as 

per Section 103 of the Act. 

13. Members desirous of getting any information regarding the Financial Statements or Operations of the 

Company may send their queries in advance to the Company Secretary of the Company at cs@khfm.in at least 

seven days prior to the date of the AGM, so that relevant information can be made available during the meeting. 

14. All documents referred to in the Notice will be available for inspection by Members in electronic mode from 

the date of circulation of the Notice till the date of the AGM. Members who wish to inspect such documents 

may send an email to cs@khfm.in. to request access. 

15. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained under Section 170 

of the Act, and the Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which Directors are interested maintained under 

Section 189 of the Act, along with other relevant documents referred to in the Notice and Explanatory 

Statement, will be available for inspection upon request. Members may send an email to cs@khfm.in to request 

access. 

16. Members who would like to express their views or ask questions during the AGM may pre-register themselves 

as a speaker by sending their request from their registered email address mentioning their name, DP ID and 

Client ID/folio number, PAN, mobile number at cs@khfm.in between Saturday, September 20, 2025 (9:00 

a.m. IST) to Monday, September 22, 2025 (5:00 p.m. IST). 

17. In compliance with Section 108 of the Act, read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and 

Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended), and Regulation 44 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Company 

is providing its Members the facility to cast their votes electronically on the resolutions set forth in this Notice. 

Members may exercise their voting rights either through remote e-voting or by e-voting during the AGM. The 

remote e-voting period will commence on Monday, September 22, 2025, at 9:00 A.M. (IST) and will conclude 

on Thursday, September 25, 2025, at 5:00 P.M. (IST), after which the remote e-voting facility shall be disabled 

by the e-voting service provider. Detailed instructions for e-voting are provided in Annexure I to this Notice. 

18. The voting rights of members shall be in proportion to their shareholding in the paid-up equity share capital of 

the Company as on the cut-off date, i.e., Friday, September 19, 2025. Only those Members whose names appear 

in the Register of Members or in the Register of Beneficial Owners maintained by the Depositories as on the 

cut-off date shall be entitled to vote. Others may treat this Notice as for information purposes only. 

19. Members may join the AGM through the VC/OAVM facility up to 15 minutes before and after the scheduled 

commencement time of the Meeting by following the instructions as provided in Annexure I to this Notice. 

20. In case of joint holders attending the AGM, only the Member whose name appears first in the Register of 

Members will be entitled to vote. 
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21. Institutional/Corporate Members are encouraged to attend the AGM through their authorised representatives 

and are requested to send a scanned copy of the Board Resolution or Authorization Letter, authorising their 

representative(s) to attend and vote on their behalf, at cs@khfm.in. 

22. The Company has appointed Mishra & Associates, Practising Company Secretary (Membership No. 41066 

and CP No. 18303), as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the remote e-voting and e-voting process at the AGM in a 

fair and transparent manner. 

23. The results declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report will be placed on the website of the Company at 

www.khfm.in, on the website of the e-voting agency, and shall also be submitted to the Stock Exchange, within 

the prescribed time. 

24. Members who have not encashed their dividend declared by the Company in the past, if any, are requested to 

immediately write to the Company for revalidation or issuance of demand draft in lieu thereof. Pursuant to the 

provisions of Section 124 of the Act, unclaimed dividends for a continuous period of seven years shall be 

transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF). Further, under Section 124(6) of the Act, 

shares in respect of which dividend has not been claimed for seven consecutive years or more shall also be 

transferred to the IEPF Authority.  

25. The Board of Directors have not recommended any dividend for the FY 2024–25. 

 

 

 

By order of the Board of Directors 

KHFM Hospitality and Facility Management Services Limited 

 

 

Sd/- 

Ritesh K. Mishra 

Company Secretary and Compliance Officer 

ICSI Membership No: A76039 

 

 

Date: August 28, 2025 

Place: Mumbai 
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Annexure I 

 

Instructions for Remote E-Voting, E-Voting During the AGM, and Participation through Video 

Conferencing (VC) / Other Audio-Visual Means (OAVM) 

 

1. THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER: 

 

i. The voting period begins on Monday, September 22, 2025 at 9:00 A.M. (IST) and ends on Thursday, 

September 25, 2025 at 5:00 P.M. (IST) During this period shareholders of the Company, holding shares either 

in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date i.e. Friday, September 19, 2025. may cast 

their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by Bigshare for voting thereafter. 

ii. Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the meeting 

venue. 

iii. Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, under Regulation 

44 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, listed entities are required to provide remote e-voting facility to its shareholders, in respect 

of all shareholders resolutions. However, it has been observed that the participation by the public non-

institutional shareholders/retail shareholders is at a negligible level. 

Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to listed entities in 

India. This necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance of multiple user IDs and passwords by 

the shareholders. 

In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation, it has been decided 

to enable e-voting to all the demat account holders, by way of a single login credential, through their demat 

accounts/ websites of Depositories / Depository Participants. Demat account holders would be able to cast 

their vote without having to register again with the ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating seamless 

authentication but also enhancing ease and convenience of participating in e-voting process. 

iv. In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting 

facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed 

to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders 

are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting 

facility. 

2. LOGIN METHOD FOR E-VOTING FOR INDIVIDUAL SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING SECURITIES IN 

DEMAT MODE IS GIVEN BELOW: 

 

Type of 

shareholders 

Login Method 

 

Individual 

Shareholders 

holding securities 

in Demat mode 

with CDSL 

1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their existing 

user id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page without 

any further authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi/Easiest is 

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasitoken/home/login or visit CDSL website 

www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon & New System Myeasi Tab and then use 

your existing my easi username & password. 

2) After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting option 

for eligible companies where the evoting is in progress as per the information provided 

by company. On clicking the evoting option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page 
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of BIGSHARE the e-Voting service provider and you will be re-directed to i-Vote 

website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period. Additionally, there 

are also links provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers i.e. 

BIGSHARE, so that the user can visit the e-Voting service providers’ website 

directly. 

3) If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at 

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasitoken/Registration/EasiRegistration  

Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat Account 

Number and PAN No. from a link 

https://evoting.cdslindia.com/Evoting/EvotingLogin The system will authenticate the 

user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat Account. 

After successful authentication, user will be able to see the e-Voting option where the 

evoting is in progress, and will also be able to directly access the system of all e-

Voting Service Providers. Click on BIGSHARE and you will be re-directed to i-Vote 

website for casting your vote during the remote e-voting period. 

 

Individual 

Shareholders 

holding securities 

in demat mode 

with NSDL 

1) If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-Services 

website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 

https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the 

home page of e-Services is launched, click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under 

“Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section. A new screen will open. You will 

have to enter your User ID and Password. After successful authentication, you will 

be able to see e-Voting services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting 

services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-

Voting service provider name BIGSHARE and you will be re-directed to i-Vote 

website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual 

meeting & voting during the meeting. 

2) If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for IDeAS “Portal or click   at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp  

3) Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once 

the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is 

available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have 

to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold with NSDL), 

Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful 

authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-

Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name BIGSHARE 

and you will be redirected to i-Vote website for casting your vote during the remote e-

Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting 

4) For OTP based login you can  

click on https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/evoting/evotinglogin.jsp. You will 

have to enter your 8-digit DP ID,8-digit Client Id, PAN No., Verification code and 

generate OTP. Enter the OTP received on registered email id/mobile number and click 

on login. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository 

site wherein you can see e-Voting page with all e-Voting Service Providers. Click on 

BIGSHARE and you will be re-directed to i-vote (E-voting website) for casting your 
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vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the 

meeting. 

Individual 

Shareholders 

(holding securities 

in demat mode) 

login through their 

Depository 

Participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your 

Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility.  After 

Successful login, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click on e-Voting 

option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful 

authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-

Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider 

website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual 

meeting & voting during the meeting. 

 

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and 

Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to 

login through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL 

Login type Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in Demat 

mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 

CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free 

No. 1800 22 55 33. 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in Demat 

mode with NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 

NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at 

evoting@nsdl.com or call at 022- 48867000. 

 

3. LOGIN METHOD FOR E-VOTING FOR SHAREHOLDERS OTHER THAN INDIVIDUAL 

SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING SHARES IN DEMAT MODE AND PHYSICAL MODE IS GIVEN 

BELOW: 

 

▪ You are requested to launch the URL on internet browser: https://ivote.Bigshareonline.com  

▪ Click on “LOGIN” button under the ‘INVESTOR LOGIN’ section to Login on E-Voting Platform.                              

▪ Please enter you ‘USER ID’ (User id description is given below) and ‘PASSWORD’ which is shared 

separately on you registered email id. 

o Shareholders holding shares in CDSL demat account should enter 16 Digit Beneficiary ID as user id. 

o Shareholders holding shares in NSDL demat account should enter 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 

Digit Client ID as user id. 

o Shareholders holding shares in physical form should enter Event No + Folio Number registered with 

the Company as user id. 

Note If you have not received any user id or password please email from your registered email id or contact 

i-vote helpdesk team. (Email id and contact number are mentioned in helpdesk section). 
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▪ Click on I AM NOT A ROBOT (CAPTCHA) option and login.  

NOTE: If Shareholders are holding shares in demat form and have registered on to e-Voting system of 

https://ivote.Bigshareonline.com  and/or voted on an earlier event of any company then they can use their 

existing user id and password to login. 

▪ If you have forgotten the password: Click on ‘LOGIN’ under ‘INVESTOR LOGIN’ tab and then Click 

on ‘Forgot your password? 

▪ Enter “User ID” and “Registered email ID” and Click on I AM NOT A ROBOT (CAPTCHA) option 

and click on ‘Reset’. 

(In case a shareholder is having valid email address, Password will be sent to his / her registered e-mail 

address). 

Voting method for shareholders on i-Vote E-voting portal: 

▪ After successful login, Bigshare E-voting system page will appear. 

▪ Click on “VIEW EVENT DETAILS (CURRENT)” under ‘EVENTS’ option on investor portal. 

▪ Select the event you wish to vote under the drop-down option. 

▪ Click on “VOTE NOW” option which is appearing on the top-right corner of the page. 

▪ Cast your vote by selecting an appropriate option “IN FAVOUR”, “NOT IN FAVOUR” or “ABSTAIN” 

and click on “SUBMIT VOTE”. A confirmation box will be displayed. Click “OK” to confirm, else 

“CANCEL” to modify. Once you confirm, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.  

▪ Once you confirm the vote you will receive confirmation message on display screen and also you will 

receive an email on your registered email id. During the voting period, members can login any number of 

times till they have voted on the resolution(s). Once vote on a resolution is cast, it cannot be changed 

subsequently. 

▪ Shareholders can “CHANGE PASSWORD” or “VIEW/UPDATE PROFILE” under “PROFILE” 

option on investor portal. 

4. CUSTODIAN REGISTRATION PROCESS FOR I-VOTE E-VOTING WEBSITE: 

 

▪ You are requested to launch the URL on internet browser: https://ivote.Bigshareonline.com  

▪ Click on “REGISTER” under “CUSTODIAN LOGIN”, to register yourself on Bigshare i-Vote e-Voting 

Platform. 

▪ Enter all required details and submit. 

▪ After Successful registration, message will be displayed with “User id and password will be sent via email 

on your registered email id”. 

NOTE: If Custodian have registered on to e-Voting system of https://ivote.Bigshareonline.com  and/or voted 

on an earlier event of any company then they can use their existing user id and password to login. 

▪ If you have forgotten the password: Click on ‘LOGIN’ under ‘CUSTODIAN LOGIN’ tab and further Click 

on ‘Forgot your password? 
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▪ Enter “User ID” and “Registered email ID” Click on I AM NOT A ROBOT (CAPTCHA) option and 

click on ‘RESET. 

(In case a custodian is having valid email address, Password will be sent to his / her registered e-mail 

address). 

Voting method for Custodian on i-Vote E-voting portal: 

▪ After successful login, Bigshare E-voting system page will appear. 

Investor Mapping: 

▪ First you need to map the investor with your user ID under “DOCUMENTS” option on custodian portal. 

o Click on “DOCUMENT TYPE” drop-down option and select document type power of attorney 

(POA). 

o Click on upload document “CHOOSE FILE” and upload power of attorney (POA) or board resolution 

for respective investor and click on “UPLOAD”. 

Note: The power of attorney (POA) or board resolution has to be named as the “InvestorID.pdf” 

(Mention Demat account number as Investor ID.) 

o Your investor is now mapped and you can check the file status on display.  

Investor vote File Upload: 

• To cast your vote, select “VOTE FILE UPLOAD” option from left hand side menu on custodian portal. 

• Select the Event under drop-down option. 

▪ Download sample voting file and enter relevant details as required and upload the same file under upload 

document option by clicking on “UPLOAD”. Confirmation message will be displayed on the screen and 

also you can check the file status on display (Once vote on a resolution is cast, it cannot be changed 

subsequently).  

▪ Custodian can “CHANGE PASSWORD” or “VIEW/UPDATE PROFILE” under “PROFILE” option 

on custodian portal. 

Helpdesk for queries regarding e-voting: 

Login type Helpdesk details 

Shareholders other than individual shareholders 

holding shares in Demat mode & Physical mode. 

In case shareholders/ investor have any queries regarding 

E-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions 

(‘FAQs’) and i-Vote e-Voting module available at 

https://ivote.Bigshareonline.com, under download section 

or you can email us at ivote@Bigshareonline.com or call us 

at: 022-62638338 

 

5. PROCEDURE FOR JOINING THE AGM THROUGH VC/ OAVM: 
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For shareholders other than individual shareholders holding shares in Demat mode & physical mode is given 

below: 

▪ The Members may attend the AGM through VC/ OAVM at https://ivote.Bigshareonline.com under Investor 

login by using the e-voting credentials (i.e., User ID and Password). 

▪ After successful login, Bigshare E-voting system page will appear. 

▪ Click on “VIEW EVENT DETAILS (CURRENT)” under ‘EVENTS’ option on investor portal. 

▪ Select event for which you are desire to attend the AGM under the drop-down option. 

▪ For joining virtual meeting, you need to click on “VC/OAVM” link placed beside of “VIDEO 

CONFERENCE LINK” option. 

▪ Members attending the AGM through VC/ OAVM will be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum 

under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

The instructions for Members for e-voting on the day of the AGM are as under: 

▪ The Members can join the AGM in the VC/ OAVM mode 15 minutes before the scheduled time of the 

commencement of the meeting. The procedure for e-voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions 

mentioned above for remote e-voting.  

▪ Only those members/shareholders, who will be present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have 

not cast their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, 

shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the AGM. 

▪ Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. However, they will 

not be eligible to vote at the AGM. 

Helpdesk for queries regarding virtual meeting: 

In case shareholders/ investor have any queries regarding virtual meeting, you may refer the Frequently Asked 

Questions (‘FAQs’) available at https://ivote.Bigshareonline.com, under download section or you can email us at 

ivote@Bigshareonline.com or call us at: 1800 22 54 22, 022-62638338 

 

 

By order of the Board of Directors 

 KHFM Hospitality and Facility Management Services Limited 

 

 

Sd/- 

Ritesh K. Mishra 

Company Secretary and Compliance Officer 

ICSI Membership No: A76039 

 

 

Date: August 28, 2025 

Place: Mumbai 

 

 

20

https://ivote.bigshareonline.com/
https://ivote.bigshareonline.com/
mailto:ivote.bigshareonline.com


 

Annual Report 2024-25  
 

Annexure II 

 

Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) 

 

The following Statement sets out all material facts relating to the Special Business mentioned in the Item No. 3 of 

the accompanying Notice: 

The Board of Directors of the Company had appointed Mr. Rudra Narayan Kar (DIN: 10898326) as an Additional 

Director of the Company with effect from January 09, 2025, pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 and 

161 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) 

Rules, 2014 and Schedule IV to the Act, and applicable provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI LODR”). In terms of Section 161 of the Act, Mr. Rudra Narayan Kar 

holds office as Additional Director up to the date of this Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) and is eligible for 

appointment as an Independent Director of the Company. 

The Company has received from Mr. Rudra Narayan Kar a notice under Section 160 of the Act proposing his 

candidature for the office of Director. The Company has also received from him the requisite consent in Form DIR-

2 pursuant to Section 152 of the Act, and a declaration confirming that he meets the criteria of independence as 

prescribed under Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of SEBI LODR. He has also confirmed that he 

is not disqualified from being appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 of the Act and has duly registered on 

the Independent Directors’ databank maintained by the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs. In the opinion of the 

Board, Mr. Rudra Narayan Kar fulfils the conditions prescribed under the Act and SEBI LODR for appointment as 

an Independent Director and is independent of the management. 

Mr. Rudra Narayan Kar is a finance and banking professional with over 34 years of experience at the Reserve Bank 

of India in senior management roles. He has significant regulatory and supervisory experience across financial 

institutions and markets. He has also held board-level positions, having served as the Chief Executive Officer of 

Financial Benchmarks India Pvt Ltd for 7 years. The Board believes that his extensive domain knowledge and 

leadership experience would be highly beneficial to the Company. Accordingly, the Board recommended his 

appointment as an Independent Director of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation, for a term of five 

consecutive years commencing from January 09, 2025, subject to the approval of the Members. Upon appointment, 

he shall be entitled to remuneration by way of sitting fees for attending meetings of the Board and such other 

remuneration as may be determined by the Board, within the limits approved by the Members. 

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their respective relatives is, in any way, 

concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution, except Mr. Rudra Narayan Kar to the extent of 

his appointment. The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution as set out at Item No. 3 of the accompanying 

Notice for the approval of the Members. 

By order of the Board of Directors 

KHFM Hospitality and Facility Management Services Limited 

 

 

Sd/- 

Ritesh K. Mishra 

Company Secretary and Compliance Officer 

ICSI Membership No: A76039 

 

 

Date: August 28, 2025 

Place: Mumbai 
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Annexure III 

 

 Details of the Director seeking appointment / re-appointment at the Forthcoming Annual General Meeting 

 (Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 36(3) of SEBI (LODR), 2015 and Secretarial Standards on 

General Meetings (“SS-2”) issued by ICSI) 

 

Profile of Mrs. Sujata Ravindra Hegde 

Mrs. Sujata Ravindra Hegde (DIN: 01829352) is the Promoter Director and Chief Financial Officer of the 

Company. She pursued her Higher Secondary Education from Sheth Anandilal Podar Junior College in 1988. She 

has been the Director of the Company since inception and is also one of the subscribers to the MOA of our 

Company. She has over 22 years of experience of handling Financial and Administrative activities of our Company. 

She is also in charge of maintaining quality checks as per ISO Standards across all the functional sites. 

Name of the Director Mrs. Sujata Ravindra Hegde 

DIN 01829352 

Date of Birth  18/09/1968 

Date of First Appointment on the Board January 27, 2006 

Qualification & Expertise 

She pursued her Higher Secondary Education from Sheth 

Anandilal Podar Junior College in 1988 and has been the 

Director of the Company since inception. She has experience of 

over 22 years of handling Financial and Administrative activities 

of our Company. She is also in charge of maintaining quality 

checks as per ISO Standards across all the functional sites. 

No. of Equity Share held in the Company  10,47,800 Shares 

Relationship with Other Directors of the 

Company & Their Shareholding in the 

company 

1. Spouse: Mr. Ravindra Hegde, Managing Director, holding 

67,02,819 Shares. 

2. Son: Mr. Saurav Hegde, Director, Holding 6,303 Shares 

Year of Experience More than 22 Years 

Remuneration Last Drawn by such 

person, if any 
Rs.12,00,000 p.a. during the F.Y. 2024-25 

Remuneration proposed to be paid Rs.12,00,000 p.a.  

Terms and conditions of appointment/ re-

appointment & Remuneration sought for 
N.A.  

No. of Meeting of the Board attended 

during the year 
5 out of 5 

List of Directorship held in other 

companies  

KHFM HR Consultancy Private Limited 

 

Chairman/Member of the Committee of 

the Board of Directors of Company 
Member of the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee 

Chairman/Member of the Committee of 

the Board of Directors of other Companies 
N.A. 
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Profile of Mr. Rudra Narayan Kar 

Mr. Rudra Narayan Kar is a seasoned finance professional with over 35 years of experience in banking, financial 

markets, foreign exchange and debt management, and regulatory policy. He served as the first Chief Executive 

Officer of Financial Benchmarks India Pvt. Ltd. (FBIL) from 2017 to 2023, where he played a key role in 

establishing FBIL as a credible and transparent financial infrastructure institution. Prior to this, he was associated 

with the Reserve Bank of India for over three decades, retiring as Chief General Manager in June 2017. During his 

tenure at RBI, he was closely involved in policy-making and implementation relating to foreign exchange 

management, sovereign debt, development of financial markets, and regulation and supervision of banks and 

NBFCs. 

He has also served as RBI’s Nominee Director on the Boards of State Bank of Hyderabad (2004–2007) and 

Syndicate Bank (2014–2017). He currently acts as a Consultant to FBIL, advising on benchmark design and 

methodology in financial instruments. Mr. Kar holds a B.A. (Hons.) in Political Science from Ravenshaw College, 

an M.A. and M.Phil. in Political Science from Jawaharlal Nehru University, an M.S. in Finance from the University 

of Illinois at Urbana-Champaign (USA), and is a Certified Associate of the Indian Institute of Bankers (CAIIB). 

Name of the Director Mr. Rudra Narayan Kar 

DIN 10898326 

Date of Birth  20/03/1958 

Date of First Appointment January 09, 2025 

Qualification & Expertise 

Mr. Rudra Narayan Kar is a veteran finance professional with 

over 35 years of experience across RBI and FBIL. He has held 

key leadership roles in banking regulation, financial markets, and 

benchmark development. He retired as Chief General Manager 

at RBI and later served as the first CEO of FBIL. He is presently 

engaged as a Consultant with FBIL. 

No. of Equity Share held in the Company  Nil 

Relationship with Other Directors of the 

Company & Their Shareholding in the 

company 

Mr. Rudra Narayan Kar is not related to any of the Directors or 

Key Managerial Personnel or Promoters and Promoter group of 

the Company and does not hold any shares in the Company 

Year of Experience 35 Years 

Terms and conditions of appointment 

The term of appointment of an Independent Director (ID) of the 

Company is for a period of 5 consecutive years from the date of 

his/ her appointment. Independent Director is not liable to retire 

by rotation. 

Skills and capabilities required for the role 

and the manner in which the proposed 

person meets such requirements 

Mr. Rudra Narayan Kar’s leadership roles at RBI and FBIL 

reflect his strong expertise in financial regulation and market 

infrastructure, aligning well with the requirements of the 

position. 

Remuneration / sitting fees last drawn Sitting Fees - Rs. 7,500 

Remuneration proposed to be paid Sitting fees as applicable 

No. of Meeting of the Board attended 

during the year 
1 out of 1 

List of Directorships held in other 

companies  
N.A. 

Chairman/Member of the Committee of 

the Board of Directors of Company 

Member of Audit Committee and Nomination & Remuneration 

Committee 

Chairman/Member of the Committee of 

the Board of Directors of other Companies 
N.A. 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

To, 

The Members, 

KHFM Hospitality and Facility Management Services Limited 

Your Directors are pleased to present the 19th Annual Report on the affairs of the KHFM Hospitality and 

Facility Management Services Limited (“the Company”) together with the Audited Financial Statements for the 

financial year ended March 31, 2025 (“year under review”). 

1. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS / PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY: 

The Company’s financial performance (Standalone and Consolidated) during the financial year ended March 

31, 2025 are summarized in the following table: 

(In Rs. Lakhs) 

PARTICULARS 

Standalone Consolidated 

Year ended 

31.03.2025 

Year ended 

31.03.2024 

Year ended 

31.03.2025 

Year ended 

31.03.2024 

Revenue from Operations 9,518.25 10,744.51 10,429.96 11,209.48 

Other Income  79.47 66.55 96.34 67.33 

Profit Before Depreciation, Interest & Tax 1,092.26 1,042.27 1,153.88 1,043.52 

Interest (Finance Cost) 528.02 507.76 560.42 532.81 

Profit Before Depreciation & Tax 564.24 534.51 593.46 510.71 

Depreciation and amortization expense 85.05 58.44 85.86 58.65 

Profit Before Tax 479.19 476.07 507.60 452.06 

Current Tax (154.62) (82.04) (145.99) (74.16) 

Reversal / Provision of Income Tax 271.46 64.17 271.64 63.79 

Deferred Tax 37.70 147.48 37.73 147.51 

Total Tax Expense 154.54 129.61 163.38 137.14 

Profit / (Loss) for the Year 324.65 346.46 344.22 314.92 

 

2. COMPANY’S PERFORMANCE REVIEW: 

 

The audited financial statements of the Company, both Standalone and Consolidated, for the financial year 

ended March 31, 2025, have been prepared in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 

2013, the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 

Rules, 2015 and other relevant accounting principles and policies. 

During FY 2024–25, the Company recorded Standalone Revenue from Operations of Rs. 9,518.25 lakh, 

compared with Rs. 10,744.51 lakh in FY 2023–24. Standalone EBITDA (including other income) stood at Rs. 

1,092.26 lakh in FY 2024–25, compared with Rs. 1,042.27 lakh in FY 2023–24. The Standalone Profit after Tax 

(PAT) for the year was Rs. 324.65 lakh in FY 2024–25, compared with Rs. 346.46 lakh in FY 2023–24. 

 

We secured new work orders valued at approximately Rs. 7,927.82 lakh during the year, reaffirming our strong 

market presence and execution capabilities. 
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3. STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS 

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013 and in accordance with Secretarial Standard-4 issued 

by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, the Board of Directors states as under: 

The Company continues to be engaged in the business of hospitality and facility management services, which 

remains its principal line of activity. Operations during the year spanned across its established service segments, 

including housekeeping, engineering maintenance, Catering, Horticulture, Gardening, security services, and 

other facility management solutions. These activities were carried out in the ordinary course of business, and 

there has been no change in the overall nature or scope of operations 

There has been no change in the status of the Company during the financial year, and the financial year of the 

Company also remains unchanged. No major business developments occurred during the year that would have a 

material impact on the Company’s affairs. The Company did not undertake any new capital expenditure 

programmes beyond routine operational requirements, and no acquisitions, mergers, expansions, 

modernisations, or diversifications were carried out. 

Further, there were no developments, acquisitions, or assignments of any material intellectual property rights 

during the year. There were also no other material events or circumstances during the financial year or after its 

close till the date of this Report that could have an impact on the Company’s financial position or business 

operations. 

The Board remains committed to sustaining operational efficiency and service quality and will continue to focus 

on leveraging the Company’s existing capabilities to maintain stable and efficient performance in the year 

ahead. 

4. TRANSFER TO RESERVES  

No amount has been transferred to any reserve during the year under review. The entire profit has been retained 

in the Statement of Profit and Loss to strengthen the Company’s internal accruals. 

5. DIVIDEND 

After careful consideration of the Company’s financial performance, liquidity position, prevailing economic 

conditions and future capital requirements, the Board of Directors have decided not to recommend any dividend 

for the financial year ended March 31, 2025. This approach is aligned with the Company’s strategic focus on 

reinvesting profits for long-term value creation. 

6. TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND AND UNCLAIMED SHARES: 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013, any dividend amount that 

remains unpaid or unclaimed for a period of seven consecutive years is required to be transferred to the Investor 

Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) established by the Central Government. 

During the year under review, there were no amounts lying in the Unpaid / Unclaimed Dividend Account that 

had remained unpaid / unclaimed for seven years or more from the date of their transfer. Accordingly, no 

amounts were required to be transferred to the IEPF during the financial year. 

Further, in accordance with the Secretarial Standard on Dividend (SS–3) issued by the Institute of Company 

Secretaries of India, the details of the unclaimed dividend accounts along with the respective due dates for 

transfer of such amounts and the corresponding shares to the IEPF Authority are provided in the table below. 
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Financial 

Year 
Type of Dividend Rate (%) 

Date of 

Declaration 

Due Date for 

Transfer to 

IEPF 

Amount Transferred to 

Unpaid Unclaimed 

Dividend Account 

2018-19 Final Dividend 5% 25/09/2019 02/10/2026 Rs. 4,500/- 

2019-20 Final Dividend 2.5% 30/09/2020 07/10/2027 Rs. 6,438/- 

2024-25 Final Dividend 5% 30/09/2024 07/10/2031 Rs. 19,070/- 

 

Shareholders are requested to note that the unclaimed dividend and the corresponding shares once transferred to 

the IEPF Authority along with any benefits that may accrue thereon can be claimed by the concerned 

shareholders by submitting an application in the prescribed manner in accordance with the applicable provisions 

of the IEPF Rules. 

 

7. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS 

There have been no material changes or commitments affecting the financial position of the Company which 

occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial statements relate and the 

date of this Report. 

8. SHARE CAPITAL 

As on March 31, 2025, the Paid-up Equity Share Capital of the Company stood at Rs. 20,87,84,990, comprising 

2,08,78,499 equity shares of face value Rs. 10 each. 

Board of Directors, at their meeting held on February 15, 2024, had approved a preferential issue comprising of 

9,20,700 equity shares (of which only 8,37,000 equity shares were subsequently allotted) and 22,32,000 

convertible warrants, each convertible into one equity share, in accordance with applicable provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018. The said proposal was approved by the shareholders 

at the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on March 18, 2024, and the in-principle listing approval for both 

instruments was received from the National Stock Exchange of India Limited (“NSE”) on April 29, 2024. 

During the year under review 7,54,141 equity shares were allotted upon conversion of convertible warrants. The 

final listing and trading approval for 3,93,700 of these shares was received from NSE on May 21, 2025, and for 

the balance 3,60,441 shares on May 22, 2025, both after the closure of the financial year.  

Accordingly, upon receipt of these approvals, the Paid-up Equity Share Capital stood revised to Rs. 

21,63,26,400, comprising 2,16,32,640 equity shares of Rs. 10 each. 

Preferential Allotment of Equity Shares 

Pursuant to the aforementioned approvals, the Preferential Allotment Committee of the Board, at its meeting 

held on May 02, 2024, allotted 8,37,000 equity shares on a preferential basis, as under: 

• 1,51,900 equity shares were allotted to Mr. Ravindra Hegde, Promoter and Managing Director, against 

conversion of unsecured loans aggregating Rs. 78,98,800, at an issue price of Rs. 52 per share; 

 

• 6,85,100 equity shares were allotted to non-promoter (public category) investors for cash consideration, 

aggregating Rs. 3,56,25,200. 

The final listing and trading approval for these equity shares was received from the NSE on August 06, 2024. 
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Conversion of Warrants into Equity Shares 

On May 13, 2024, the Preferential Allotment Committee of the Board allotted 22,32,000 convertible warrants 

on a preferential basis at an issue price of Rs. 52 per warrant (comprising Rs. 10 face value and Rs. 42 

premium), Of these, 8,58,700 warrants were allotted to promoters and 13,73,300 warrants to non-promoters. In 

accordance with the terms of issue, 25% of the issue price was duly received at the time of allotment, with the 

balance 75% payable upon conversion. 

During the FY 2024–25, a total of 7,54,141 warrants were converted into an equivalent number of fully paid-up 

equity shares upon receipt of the balance issue price, in compliance with the terms of issue and applicable SEBI 

regulations. This included 25,641 warrants converted by Mr. Ravindra Hegde, Promoter and Managing Director, 

on December 18, 2024, and 7,28,500 warrants converted by allottees other than promoters on different 

occasions during the year 

The final listing and trading approval for these equity shares was received from the NSE on May 22, 2025, after 

the closure of the financial year. The remaining 14,77,859 warrants continue to be eligible for conversion within 

the stipulated period in accordance with the terms of allotment. 

9. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS   

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments pursuant to the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 

2013, read with Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, are provided in the notes to the 

financial statements. 

10. PUBLIC DEPOSITS 

The Company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposits during the year under review and has complied 

with the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of 

Deposits) Rules, 2014. As such, no amount of principal or interest on public deposits was outstanding as on the 

date of the Balance Sheet. 

11. SUBSIDIARY, ASSOCIATE AND JOINT VENTURE COMPANIES 

During the year under review, there were no additions to or cessations from the list of subsidiaries, associate 

companies, or joint venture entities of the Company. 

The Company has the following subsidiary and joint venture entities as on March 31, 2025: 

KHFM Infra Projects Private Limited:  

KHFM Infra Projects Private Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. It was incorporated as a 

Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) to execute plantation works along the Hindu Hrudaysamrat Balasaheb 

Thackeray Maharashtra Samruddhi Mahamarg on EPC mode for the section from Ch. Km. 0+000 to Km. 

31+000 (Village Shivmadka to Village Khadki Amgaon, Nagpur District), covering a total stretch of 31 

kilometers under package “LPP 01”. 

KHFM & DP Jain Company:  

KHFM & DP Jain Company is a partnership firm formed between the Company (holding a 99% stake) and DP 

Jain & Company Private Limited (holding 1%). The firm was constituted as a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) 

for the execution of plantation works along the Hindu Hrudaysamrat Balasaheb Thackeray Maharashtra 
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Samruddhi Mahamarg on EPC mode for the section from Ch. Km. 623+479 to Km. 664+479 (Village 

Tarangpada – Pimpri Sadroddin to Village Birwadi, in Nashik and Thane Districts), covering a total stretch of 

41.10 kilometers under package “LPP 14”. 

Pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 

2014, a statement containing the salient features of the financial statements of the Company’s subsidiaries, in 

the prescribed Form AOC–1, is attached as Annexure I of this Report 

 

12. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES 

All related party transactions entered into by the Company during the financial year were in the ordinary course 

of business and on an arm’s length basis, in accordance with the provisions of the Section 188 of the Companies 

Act, 2013.  

There were no material related party transactions requiring approval of the shareholders as required under 

Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Form AOC-2, as required under Section 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(2) of the 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, is attached as Annexure II of this Report. 

13. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION 

Information as required under the provisions of Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 5 of the 

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory 

modification(s)/amendment(s)/re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force), is set out in Annexure III 

hereto, which forms part of this Board’s Report. 

14. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

i. Retirement by Rotation and subsequent Re-appointment  

In accordance with Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mrs. Sujata Ravindra Hegde (DIN: 01829352), 

Director, is liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, has offered 

herself for re-appointment. The Board recommends her re-appointment for the approval of the Members.  

ii. Changes in the Composition of the Board of Directors 

Resignation of Mr. Kapildeo Ramswarup Agrawal  

Mr. Kapildeo Ramswarup Agrawal (DIN: 09679952), Non-Executive Independent Director, resigned from the 

Board and its Committees with effect from October 11, 2024, due to other professional commitments that 

limited his availability. The Board places on record its sincere appreciation for his guidance, strategic insights, 

and valuable contributions during his association with the Company. 

Appointment of Mr. Rudra Narayan Kar  

Mr. Rudra Narayan Kar (DIN: 10898326) was appointed as an Additional (Independent) Director with effect 

from January 09, 2025. He is a seasoned finance and banking professional with over 34 years of experience in 

senior leadership roles at the Reserve Bank of India. He also served as the Chief Executive Officer of Financial 

Benchmarks India Pvt. Ltd. for seven years. His expertise spans across regulatory policy, financial institution 
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supervision, monetary operations, and corporate governance. The Board is confident that his appointment will 

further strengthen the Company’s governance framework. 

iii. Changes in Key Managerial Personnel 

Appointment of Mrs. Sujata Ravindra Hegde as Chief Financial Officer: 

Mrs. Sujata Ravindra Hegde (DIN: 01829352), Promoter and Director of the Company, was also appointed as 

the Chief Financial Officer with effect from May 14, 2024. She brings more than 22 years of experience in 

financial management, administration and implementation of ISO standards across operational sites. Her 

appointment was made in accordance with Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 and applicable SEBI Listing 

Regulations. 

Appointment and Resignation of Mr. Akash Bate as Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 

Mr. Akash Bate, an Associate Member of the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, was appointed as the 

Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company with effect from May 14, 2024. He resigned from 

the said position with effect from February 20, 2025 due to other professional pursuits. The Board places on 

record its appreciation for his professional services and contribution during his tenure. 

Appointment of Mr. Ritesh K Mishra as Company Secretary and Compliance Officer 

Mr. Ritesh K. Mishra, an Associate Member of the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, was appointed as 

the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company with effect from April 30, 2025, in compliance 

with the provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 6(1) of the SEBI Listing 

Regulations. 

iv. Composition of Board and Key Managerial Personnel as on March 31, 2025: 

The composition of the Board of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company as on March 31, 

2025, is as under: 

Sr. No. Name Designation DIN/PAN 

1. Mr. Ravindra Malinga Hegde Managing Director 01821002 

2. Mrs. Sujata Ravindra Hegde Director and CFO 01829352 

3. Mr. Saurav Hegde Director 08116567 

5. Mr. Girish Ramnani Independent Director 09362318 

6. Mr. Prabhakar Patil Independent Director 00377406 

7. Mr. Rudra Narayan Kar Additional (Independent) Director 10898326 

 

v. Declaration / Statement by Independent Directors: 

The Independent Directors have submitted their declaration of independence, stating that: 

a) They continue to fulfil the criteria of independence provided in Section 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 

2013 along with Rules framed thereunder and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations; and 

b) There has been no change in the circumstances affecting their status as Independent Directors of the 

Company. 
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The Independent Directors have also confirmed that they have complied with the Company’s Code of 

Conduct. In terms of Section 150 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder, the Independent 

Directors have also confirmed their registration (including renewal of applicable tenure) and compliance of 

the online proficiency self- assessment test (unless exempted) with the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs. 

The Board opined and confirm, in terms of Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 that the 

Independent Directors are persons of high repute, integrity and possess the relevant expertise and experience 

in their respective fields. 

vi. Policy on Appointment and Remuneration of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel 

The Company has in place a duly approved Nomination and Remuneration Policy, which sets out the 

framework for appointment, evaluation, and remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, and 

senior management. The Policy aims to ensure that appointments are merit-based and remuneration is 

aligned with industry standards and business performance, while also supporting the Company’s strategic 

objectives. 

The policy is available on the Company’s website at: https://www.khfm.in/category/event_70.pdf 

vii. Disqualification of Directors: 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) read with Rule 14 of the 

Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, the Company has received Form DIR-

8 from all Directors confirming that none of them are disqualified from being appointed or continuing as 

Directors of the Company. The Board is of the opinion that the Directors of the Company meet the criteria of 

eligibility prescribed under the Act and Rules framed thereunder 

15. BOARD MEETINGS AND GENERAL MEETING HELD DURING THE YEAR  

During the year under review, five meetings of the Board of Directors were held in compliance with the 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015, and the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI). 

The requisite quorum was present at all the meetings. The details of the Board meetings and attendance of 

Directors are as under: 

 

May 14, 2024 
May 30, 2024 November 11, 2024 

September 06, 2024 March 30, 2025 

 

The Annual General Meeting of the Company for the year under review was held on September 30, 2024.   

 

Sr. 

No. 
Name of the Director 

No. of Board Meetings Whether present at AGM 

held on September 30, 2024 Entitled to attend Attended 

1. Mr. Ravindra Malinga 

Hegde 

5 5 Yes 

2. Mrs. Sujata Ravindra 

Hegde 

5 5 Yes 

3. Mr. Saurav Hegde 5 5 Yes 

4. Mr. Prabhakar Patil 5 5 Yes 

5. Mr. Girish Ramnani 5 4 No 

6. Mr. Rudra Narayan Kar 1 1 NA 

7. Mr. Kapildeo Agrawal* 

Ramswarup Agrawal* 

3 2 Yes 

* Mr. Kapildeo Ramswarup Agrawal resigned w.e.f. October 11, 2024 
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16. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD 

As on March 31, 2025, the Board has constituted the following Committees in accordance with the provisions of 

the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015: 

i. Audit Committee 

The Company has a duly constituted Audit Committee in compliance with the applicable provisions of the 

Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 

2014 (as amended).  

The Audit Committee comprises the following members: - 

Name of the Director / Member Designation Nature of Directorship 

Mr. Girish Ramnani Chairman Independent Director 

Mr. Ravindra Malinga Hegde Member Managing Director 

Mr. Rudra Narayan Kar Member Additional (Independent) Director 

 

During the year under review, four Audit Committee Meetings were held and all the recommendations made 

by the Audit Committee were accepted by the Board.  

All members of the Audit Committee possess sound knowledge and expertise in finance, accounting, and 

internal controls. The Committee plays a vital role in monitoring the financial reporting process, internal 

audit functions, risk management, and statutory audit matters. 

The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Committee. 

The roles and responsibilities of the Committee are as under: 

1) Overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to 

ensure that the financial statements are correct, sufficient and credible. 

2) Recommending to the Board, the appointment, re-appointment and, if required, the replacement or removal 

of the statutory auditor and the fixation of audit fees. 

3) Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors. 

4) Reviewing, the annual financial statements before submission to the board for approval, with particular 

reference to: 

a) Matters required to be included in the Directors Responsibility Statement in the Board’s report in terms 

of clause (c) of sub-section 3 of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

b) Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same. 

c) Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management. 

d) Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings. 

e) Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements. 
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f) Disclosure of any related party transactions. 

g) Modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report. 

5) Reviewing, with the management, the half yearly and annual financial statements before submission to the 

board for approval. 

6) Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an issue (public 

issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated 

in the offer document/prospectus/notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the 

utilization of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate recommendations to the Board to 

take up steps in this matter. 

7) Reviewing and monitoring the auditor’s independence and performance and effectiveness of audit process. 

8) Approval of any transactions of the Company with Related Parties, including any subsequent modification 

thereof. 

9) Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments. 

10) Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary. 

11) Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems. 

12) Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, and adequacy of the 

internal control systems. 

13) Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit 

department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and 

frequency of internal audit. 

14) Discussion with internal auditors on any significant findings and follow up there on. 

15) Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is 

suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the 

matter to the board. 

16) Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as 

post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern. 

17) To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, 

shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors. 

18) To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism, in case the same exists. 

19) Approval of appointment of CFO or any other person heading the finance function or discharging that 

function after assessing the qualifications, experience & background, etc. of the candidate. 

20) To overview the Vigil Mechanism of the Company and take appropriate actions in case of repeated frivolous 

complaints against any Director or Employee. 
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21) To implement Ind AS (Indian Accounting Standards), whenever required. 

22) Monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters. 

23) The Audit Committee shall mandatorily review the following information: 

a) Management Discussion and Analysis of financial condition and results of operations. 

b) Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the Audit Committee). 

c) Management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors. 

d) Internal Audit Reports relating to Internal Control Weaknesses. 

e) The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief Internal Auditor shall be subject to 

review by the Audit Committee. 

24) Statement of deviations: 

a) Half yearly statement of deviation(s) including report of monitoring agency, if applicable, submitted to 

stock exchange(s) in terms of Regulation 32(1). 

b) Annual statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer 

document/prospectus/notice in terms of Regulation 32(7). 

25) Powers of the Audit Committee: 

a) Investigating any activity within its terms of reference; 

b) Seeking information from any employee; 

c) Obtaining outside legal or other professional advice; and 

d) Securing attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it considers necessary. 

ii. Nomination & Remuneration Committee 

The Company has a duly constituted Nomination and Remuneration Committee in accordance with the 

provisions of Section 178 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies 

(Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014. 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises the following members: 

Name of the Director/Member Designation Nature of Directorship 

Mr. Prabhakar R.Patil Chairman Independent Director 

Mr. Girish Ramnani Member Independent Director 

Mr. Rudra Narayan Kar Member Additional (Independent) Director 

 

During the year under review, two Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meetings were held. 
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The Committee is responsible for identifying individuals qualified to become Directors and for determining the 

criteria for their independence. It also reviews and recommends the remuneration policy for Directors, Key 

Managerial Personnel, and other employees, ensuring it is aligned with market benchmarks and the Company’s 

performance objectives. 

The roles and responsibilities of the Committee are as under: 

1. Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director 

and recommend to the Board of Directors a policy relating to, the remuneration of the directors, Key 

Managerial Personnel and other associates. 

2. Formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of Independent Directors and the Board of Directors. 

3. Devising a policy on diversity of Board of Directors. 

4. Identifying persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in senior 

management in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board of Directors their 

appointment and removal. 

5. Whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the Independent Director, on the basis of the 

report of performance evaluation of Independent Directors. 

6. Such other matters as may from time to time be required by any statutory, contractual or other regulatory 

requirements to be attended to by such Committee. 

iii. Stakeholders Relationship Committee 

The Company has a duly constituted Stakeholders Relationship Committee in compliance with Section 178(5) 

and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Meetings of Board and 

its Powers) Rules, 2014. 

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee comprises the following members: 

Name of the Director/Member Designation Nature of Directorship 

Mr. Prabhakar Patil Chairman Independent Director 

Mrs. Sujata Ravindra Hegde Member Director & CFO 

Mr. Saurav Ravindra Hegde Member Director 

 

The Committee is responsible for resolving grievances and overseeing redressal mechanisms related to investor 

complaints including issues concerning non-receipt of annual reports, dividend payments, transfer/transmission 

of shares, issue of duplicate share certificates, and other investor-related matters. 

The roles and responsibilities of the Committee are as under  

1. Resolving investor grievances and monitoring redressal status. 

2. Overseeing performance of the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent. 

3. Ensuring effective communication with shareholders. 
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4. Reviewing measures for effective exercise of voting rights. 

5. Monitoring adherence to service standards for investor services. 

17. BOARD EVALUATION 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and in line with the guidance provided by the 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”), the Board carried out the annual evaluation of its own 

performance, that of its Committees, and of individual Directors. 

A separate exercise was undertaken to evaluate the performance of each Director, including the Chairman of the 

Board. The evaluation was based on defined parameters such as attendance and active participation at Board and 

Committee meetings, quality of contributions, independence of judgment, and effective safeguarding of the 

interests of minority shareholders. 

The performance of the Independent Directors was evaluated by the entire Board, excluding the Director being 

evaluated. The performance evaluation of the Chairman and the Non-Independent Directors was carried out by 

the Independent Directors. In addition, the Independent Directors also reviewed the overall performance of the 

Board and its functioning as a collective body. 

18. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

Pursuant to the requirement as specified under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory 

modification(s) and/or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), with respect to Directors’ 

Responsibility Statement, the Directors of your Company hereby state and confirm that: 

• in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2025, the applicable 

accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;  

• the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and 

estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 

Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the Company for that period;  

• the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 

accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and 

for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;  

• the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;  

• the Directors, have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such 

internal financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively;  

• the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws 

and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

19. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE 

EARNINGS AND OUTGO 

The Company is not engaged in any manufacturing activities during the financial year under review and is 

primarily involved in hospitality and facility management services. The information, as applicable, has been 

provided in Annexure IV forming part of this Report. 
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20. EXTRACT OF THE ANNUAL RETURN 

Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and 

Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended), the Company is not required to annex the extract of the Annual 

Return in Form MGT-9 to this Report. Instead, the Annual Return in Form MGT-7 has been uploaded on the 

Company’s website and can be accessed at the following link: https://www.khfm.in/financials.php?ID=1 

21. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE  

Since the Company’s securities are listed on SME Platform of NSE (i.e. SME Emerge), by virtue of Regulation 

15 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the compliance with the 

corporate governance provisions as specified in regulations 17 to 27 and clause (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of 

regulation 46 and Para C, D and E of schedule V are not applicable to the Company. Hence Corporate 

Governance does not form part of this Board’s Report. 

22. COMPLIANCES OF SECRETARIAL STANDARDS  

The Board of Directors confirms that the Company, during the year under review has duly complied with the 

applicable Secretarial Standard/s, namely Secretarial Standard–1 (‘SS-1’) on Meetings of the Board of Directors 

and Secretarial Standard-2 (‘SS-2’) on General Meetings. 

23. RISK MANAGEMENT 

Risk is an inherent aspect of business, especially in a dynamic economic scenario. The Company’s risk 

management philosophy is to ensure that the Company has an effective risk management system in place 

comprising strategies, processes and reporting procedures necessary to continuously identify, measure, monitor, 

manage and report risks to which the Company is or could be exposed to as well as their interdependencies. 

Pursuant to section 134 (3) (n) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has Risk Management Policy to 

identify the elements of risk, if any which in the opinion of Board may threaten the existence of the Company 

and the same is available on the Company’s website at https://www.khfm.in/financials.php?ID=9. 

During the financial year under review the Board of Directors did not come across any potential risks which 

may threaten the existence of the Company. 

24. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY  

The Company has internal financial control systems commensurate with the size and complexity of its 

operations, to ensure proper recording of financials and monitoring of operational effectiveness and compliance 

of various regulatory and statutory requirements. The management regularly monitors the safeguarding of its 

assets, prevention and detection of frauds and errors, accuracy and completeness of the accounting records 

including timely preparation of reliable financial information. 

There have been no instances of fraud reported by the Auditors under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 

2013.  

25. AUDITORS  

(a) Statutory Auditor  

M/s GTA & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, were appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a 
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term of five years pursuant to the resolution passed at the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on October 27, 

2023. However, they tendered their resignation on August 19, 2024, prior to the completion of their term, due to 

non-agreement on the revised fee structure for audit services. 

In view of the said resignation, and pursuant to the provisions of Section 139(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, 

read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors, at 

their respective meetings held on September 06, 2024, recommended and approved the appointment of M/s 

YRKDAJ and Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. W100288), as the Statutory 

Auditors of the Company. Their appointment was subsequently approved by the shareholders at the 18th Annual 

General Meeting held on September 27, 2024, for a period of five consecutive years, i.e., from the conclusion of 

the said Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of the 23rd Annual General Meeting to be held in the year 

2029. 

The Board places on record its appreciation for the professional services rendered by M/s GTA & Co. LLP 

during their tenure. 

(b) Secretarial Auditor 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors have re-

appointed M/s. Mishra & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, as the Secretarial Auditor of the 

Company for the financial year 2025–26. 

The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year 2024–25, issued by M/s. Mishra & Associates, is annexed as 

Annexure V to this Report. 

(c) Internal Auditor 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Accounts) 

Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors, based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, has re-appointed 

M/s. C.C. Talreja & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 157820W), as the Internal Auditor of 

the Company for the financial year 2025–26. 

The Internal Auditor shall carry out the audit in accordance with the scope approved by the Audit Committee 

and provide independent assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls, risk management, and 

governance processes.  

26. MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS 

Maintenance of Cost Audit Records as specified by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of Section 

148 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the Company and accordingly such accounts and records 

are not required to be made and maintained. 

Also, Cost Audit is not applicable to the Company. 

27. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS  

Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review as stipulated under Regulation 34(2)(e) 

read with Schedule V of SEBI Listing Regulations, is enclosed to this Report as Annexure VI. 
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28. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT MATERIAL ORDER PASSED BY THE REGULATOR OR COURT OR 

TRIBUNAL 

There were no significant and material orders issued against the Company by a regulating authority or court or 

tribunal that could affect the going concern status and its future operations. Hence, disclosure pursuant to Rule 8 

(5) (vii) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is not required 

29. VIGIL MECHANISM 

The Company in accordance with the provisions of section 177 (9) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with rule 7 

of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, and the Listing Regulations has established a 

robust Vigil Mechanism Policy for Directors and employees. 

The vigil mechanism is overseen by the Audit Committee.  

The Policy provides for framework and process whereby concerns can be raised by its employees against any 

kind of discrimination, harassment, victimization or any other unfair practice being adopted against them. 

Adequate safeguards are provided against victimization to those who avail of the mechanism, and access to the 

Chairman of the Audit Committee, in exceptional cases, is also provided to them,  

The Whistle Blower Policy/ Vigil Mechanism Policy of the Company is available on the website of the 

Company at https://www.khfm.in/category/event_61.pdf 

30. CODE OF CONDUCT 

The Board has laid down a Code of Conduct for all Board Members and Senior Management of the Company. 

All the Board Members and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code on annual 

basis. 

31. PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING 

In compliance with the provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended, the Company has formulated 

and adopted the Code of Conduct to regulate, monitor and report trading by designated persons. The object of 

the Insider Trading Code is to set framework, rules and procedures which all concerned should follow, both in 

letter and spirit, while trading in listed securities of the Company. 

The Company has also adopted the Code of Practice and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price 

Sensitive Information (“the Code”) in line with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of 

Insider Trading) Amendment Regulations, 2018 and formulated a Policy for determination of, legitimate 

purposes as a part of the Code. The Code also includes policy and procedures for inquiry in case of leakage of 

Unpublished Price Sensitive Information (UPSI) and aims at preventing misuse of UPSI. The mechanism for 

monitoring trade in the Company’s securities by the “Designated Employees and their relatives" helps in real 

time detection and taking appropriate action, in case of any violation/non-compliance of the Company’s Insider 

Trading Code. 

32. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION 

The Board believes that effective communication of information is an essential component of Corporate 

Governance. The Company communicates with shareholders through its website and through all stipulated 

filings/announcements to the stock exchange where its shares are listed, including financial results, annual 

report, notices, outcomes of meetings, and policies. 
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33. PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE 

The Company has zero tolerance for any form of sexual harassment and is committed to creating a safe and 

inclusive work environment, especially for women. In accordance with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment 

of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and applicable rules, the Company 

has formulated and implemented a comprehensive policy to prevent and redress sexual harassment at the 

workplace. 

During the financial year 2024–25: 

• Number of complaints received: Nil 

• Number of complaints disposed of: Nil 

• Number of complaints pending beyond 90 days: Nil 

34. COMPLIANCE WITH THE MATERNITY BENEFIT ACT, 1961  

The Company has complied with the provisions of the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961, including all applicable 

amendments and rules framed thereunder. The Company is committed to ensuring a safe, inclusive, and 

supportive workplace for women employees. All eligible women employees are provided with maternity 

benefits as prescribed under the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961, including paid maternity leave, nursing breaks, 

and protection from dismissal during maternity leave.  

The Company also ensures that no discrimination is made in recruitment or service conditions on the grounds of 

maternity. Necessary internal systems and HR policies are in place to uphold the spirit and letter of the 

legislation. 

35. HUMAN RESOURCE 

The Company continues to invest in its people, who form the backbone of its success. The focus remains on 

fostering a performance-driven culture, internal talent development, leadership building, and capability 

enhancement. 

Employee engagement, training, and development programs are conducted throughout the year to strengthen the 

skills, productivity, and morale of employees. The Company also supports cross-functional exposure, job 

rotations, and merit-based progression to align career development with business goals 

The Board acknowledges the commitment and contribution of all employees and looks forward to their 

continued dedication. 

36. WEBSITE 

The Company’s Website (www.khfm.in) contains the information about the Business, Financial Information, 

Shareholding Pattern, Contact Information of the Designated Official of the Company who is responsible for 

assisting and handling investors’ grievances and such other details as may be required under sub regulation (2) 

of Regulation 46 of the Listing Regulations, 2015. 

The contents of the website are reviewed and updated on a periodic basis to ensure the availability of timely and 

accurate information to stakeholders. 
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37. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

As per the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Corporate Social 

Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, CSR provisions are applicable to companies that satisfy the specified 

financial criteria. 

During the year under review, the Company did not meet the thresholds prescribed under sub-section (1) of 

Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and accordingly, was not required to constitute a CSR Committee or 

undertake CSR expenditure.  

38. OTHER DISCLOSURE 

• No Director has received any remuneration or commission from any subsidiary of the Company. 

• The Company does not have any scheme for provision of funds for purchase of its own shares by employees 

or trustees for their benefit. 

• The Company has not accepted any public deposits during the year under review. 

• No shares (including sweat equity) have been issued to employees under any scheme. 

• There are no proceedings pending against the Company under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. 

• The Company has not undertaken any one-time settlement with any bank or financial institution during the 

year under review. 
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The Board of Directors expresses its sincere appreciation to the Company’s shareholders, customers, vendors, 

bankers, financial institutions, and regulatory authorities for their continued support and confidence in the 

Company. 
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For and on behalf of the Board 

KHFM Hospitality and Facility Management Services Limited 

 

                                                                                           Sd/-                                                  Sd/- 

Mr. Ravindra Hegde                         Mrs. Sujata Hegde 

                  Managing Director                             Director & CFO 

     DIN: 01821002                                   DIN: 01829352 

 

Date: August 25, 2025 

Place: Mumbai 
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ANNEXURE - I 

FORM AOC-1 

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) 

Rules, 2014) 

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate 

companies/joint ventures 

Part “A”: Subsidiaries 

(Amounts in Rs. Lakh) 

Sl. 

No. 

Particulars Details 

1 Name of the subsidiary KHFM Infra Projects 

Pvt Ltd 

KHFM & DP Jain 

Company 

2 Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if 

different from the holding company’s reporting period 

April 01, 2024 - 

March 31, 2025 

April 01, 2024 - 

March 31, 2025 

3 Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last 

date of the relevant Financial year in the case of 

foreign subsidiaries 

INR INR 

4 The date since when subsidiary was acquired* 22.04.2022 03.01.2023 

5 Share capital 1 - 

6 Reserves & surplus 28.88 - 

7 Total assets 178.48 109.48 

8 Total Liabilities 148.40 164.72 

9 Investments - - 

10 Turnover 735.95 192.62 

11 Profit before taxation 22.51 5.89 

12 Provision for taxation 8.84 - 

13 Profit after taxation 13.67 5.89 

14 Proposed Dividend - - 

15 % of shareholding 99% 99% 

*KHFM Infra Projects Private Limited and KHFM & DP Jain Company were incorporated with the 

Company as promoter/founding partners. Accordingly, their respective dates of incorporation have been 

considered as the dates on which they became a subsidiary/associate, in lieu of the acquisition date. 

 

Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year - Nil 

 

Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations - Nil 

 

Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures 

 

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and 

Joint Ventures - Not Applicable 

 

 

 

Sd/- 

 

Mr. Ravindra Hegde 

Managing Director 

DIN: 01821002 

 

Sd/- 

 

Mrs. Sujata Hegde 

Director & CFO 

DIN: 01829352 
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ANNEXURE – II 

FORM AOC-2 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub -section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) 

Rules, 2014) 

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts / arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties 

referred to in sub-section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions 

under third proviso thereto: 

 

DETAILS OF CONTRACTS / ARRANGEMENTS / TRANSACTIONS NOT AT ARM’S LENGTH BASIS 

 
 

There were no contracts / arrangements / transactions with related parties during the year that were not on an 

arm’s-length basis. 

 

 

DETAILS OF CONTRACTS / ARRANGEMENTS / TRANSACTIONS AT ARM’S LENGTH BASIS 

 
 

(a) Details of Contract and Arrangements  

 

Sr. 
No. 

Related Party Relationship Nature of Transaction 2024-25 

Amount 

(in Lakhs) 
1. Sujata Hegde (Prop. Palemar 

Enterprises) 

Companies under 

Common Management 

Interest Expenses 0.18 

Unsecured Loans 0.56 

2. Ravindra Hegde (Prop. KHFM 

Pest Control) 

Companies under 

Common Management 

Interest Expenses 1.12 

Unsecured Loans 22.69 

3. Saurav Hegde (Prop. SRV 

Enterprises) 

Companies under 

Common Management 

Interest Expenses 0.25 

Unsecured Loans 23.50 

4. KHFM HR Consultancy Private 

Limited 

Companies under 

Common Management 

Unsecured Loans 0.10 

5. Ravindra Hegde HUF (Prop. 

KHFM Overseas) 

Companies under 

Common Management 

Creditor 2.60 

6. Ravindra Hegde Managing Director Director’s Remuneration 12.00 

Rent Paid 10.80 

Dividend Paid 33.39 

Creditor 1.94 

Salary Payable 5.31 

7. Saurav Hegde Director Director’s Remuneration 09.00 

Dividend Paid 0.03 

Creditor 0.36 

Salary Payable 0.46 

8. Sujata Hegde Director & CFO Director’s Remuneration 12.00 

Dividend Paid 5.24 

Labour Charges 75.00 

Creditor 1.13 

Salary Payable 0.05 
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(b) Duration of contracts/arrangements/transactions 

 

Sr. No. Contracts/Arrangements/Transactions From To 

1. Transactions 01/04/2024 31/03/2025 

 

 

(c) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any 

 

The sales and purchases / services rendered to and from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that 

prevail on an arm’s-length transaction. The Board of Directors has furnished guarantee of properties held in their 

own names against loans/ working capital limits sanctioned by the Banks to the company. Details of the same are 

provided in Note: 28 of the Standalone Financial Statements. 

 

Further there were no transactions with subsidiaries during the year ended March 31, 2025, except for the closing 

balance of investment in equity instruments, as disclosed in Note 4 of audited standalone financial statements. The 

consolidated financial statements include the financial results, position and other relevant disclosures pertaining to 

the subsidiaries. The consolidated profit and loss account, balance sheet and other related figures are presented in 

the consolidated financial statements and the accompanying notes. 

 

 

(d) Date(s) of approval by the Board: May 30, 2024 

 

 

 

(e) Amount paid as advances, if any: Nil 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Sd/- 

 

Mr. Ravindra Hegde 

Managing Director 

DIN: 01821002 

 

 

Sd/- 

 

Mrs. Sujata Hegde 

Director & CFO 

DIN: 01829352 
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ANNEXURE – III 

Disclosure as per Section 197(12) of Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 

a) The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company for 

the Financial Year ending March 31, 2025 and the Percentage Increase in Remuneration of Each Director, Chief 

Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Manager during the Financial Year ending on March 31, 2025. 

Name of the Director Designation Ratio of remuneration of 

each Director to median 

remuneration of 

employees 

% increase in 

remuneration in FY 

2024-25 

Mr. Ravindra Malinga Hegde Managing Director 77.76 No change 

Mrs. Sujata Ravindra Hegde Executive Director & CFO 77.76 66.67 

Mr. Saurav Ravindra Hegde Executive Director 58.32 No change 

*Mr. Akash Bate  Company Secretary  24.63 Not Applicable 

*Mr. Akash Bate, Company Secretary & Compliance Officer Resigned w.e.f. February 20, 2025 

**Independent Directors receive only sitting fees for attending the board meetings. The sitting fees are not covered 

in the above table. 

b) The median remuneration of employees of the Company during the financial year was: Rs. 15,432 /- 

c) The percentage increase/(decrease) in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year 2024-25 is 

49.35% 

d) The Total number of employees on the rolls of the Company for the Financial Year ending March 31, 2025 was 

2,569. 

e) Average percentile increases already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in 

the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and 

justification thereof: 17.02% 

f) It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the remuneration policy of the Company. 

g) Employees employed throughout the financial year, was in receipt of remuneration for that year which, in the 

aggregate, was not less than one crore and two lakh rupees: NA 

h) Employees employed for a part of the financial year, was in receipt of remuneration for any part of that year, at 

a rate which, in the aggregate, was not less than eight lakh and fifty thousand rupees per month: NA 

i) Employees employed throughout the financial year or part thereof, was in receipt of remuneration in that year 

which, in the aggregate, or as the case may be, at a rate which, in the aggregate, is in excess of that drawn by the 

46



 

Annual Report 2024-25 
 
 
 

managing director or whole-time director or manager and holds by himself or along with his spouse and 

dependent children, not less than two percent of the equity shares of the company: NA 

j) List of top ten employees in terms of remuneration drawn in FY 2024-25:  NA 

 

 

Sd/- 

 

Mr. Ravindra Hegde 

Managing Director 

DIN: 01821002 

 

 

Sd/- 

 

Mrs. Sujata Hegde 

Director & CFO 

DIN: 01829352 
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ANNEXURE – IV 

Disclosure under Section 134 (3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 8 of the Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014  

(a) Conservation of Energy: 

 i. the steps taken or impact on conservation 

of energy 

The operations of the Company are not energy intensive. 

However, adequate measures have been initiated for 

conservation of energy wherever possible. 

 ii. the steps taken by the Company for 

utilizing alternate sources of energy 

Though the operations of the Company are not energy 

intensive, the Company explores alternative source of energy, 

as and when the necessity arises. 

 iii. the capital investment on energy 

conservation equipment 

Nil 

(b) Technology Absorption: 

 i. the efforts made towards technology 

absorption 

Nil 

 ii. the benefits derived like product 

improvement, cost reduction, product 

development or import substitution 

Nil 

 iii. in case of imported technology (imported 

during the last three years reckoned from 

the beginning of the financial year) (a) 

the details of technology imported; (b) the 

year of import; (c) whether the 

technology been fully absorbed; (d) if not 

fully absorbed, areas where absorption 

has not taken place, and the reasons 

thereof; and 

Nil 

 iv. The expenditure incurred on Research 

and Development  

Nil 

(c) Foreign exchange earnings and outgo 

 i. Total Foreign Exchange earned Nil 

 ii. Total Foreign Exchange outgo Nil 

 

 

 

Sd/- 

 

Mr. Ravindra Hegde 

Managing Director 

DIN: 01821002 

 

 

Sd/- 

 

Mrs. Sujata Hegde 

Director & CFO 

DIN: 01829352 
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FORM NO. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 

To, 

The Members of 

KHFM HOSPITALITY AND FACILITY MANAGEMENT SERVICES LIMITED 

01, Nirma Plaza, Makhwana Road, Marol Naka,  

Andheri (East), Mumbai – 400059, Maharashtra, India. 

 

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to 

good corporate practices by M/s. KHFM Hospitality and Facility Management Services Limited (hereinafter 

called ‘the Company’). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for 

evaluating the corporate conducts / statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 

 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the compliance of the applicable laws and maintenance of records 

based on audit. We have conducted the audit in accordance with the applicable Auditing Standards issued by The 

Institute of Company Secretaries of India. The Auditing Standards requires that the Auditor shall comply with 

statutory and regulatory requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 

compliance with applicable laws and maintenance of records. 

 

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 

maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized 

representatives whether electronically or otherwise during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in 

our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2025 

complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and 

compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

 

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records made available to us 

and maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2025 according to the provisions of: 

 

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under (in so far as they are made 

applicable); 

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under; 

iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under; 

iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent 

of Foreign Direct Investment (Regulations relating to Overseas Direct Investment and External 

Commercial Borrowings): Not applicable to the Company for the audit period as there were no 

Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings by 

the Company; 

 

v. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India 

Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’); 
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a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 

Regulations, 2011; 

 

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992 and 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 

 

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2009; and amendments from time to time; 

 

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014; 

Not Applicable to the Company during the period under review; 

 

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 

2008: Not applicable to the Company during the audit period; 

 

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009: Not 

Applicable as there was no reportable event during the period under review; 

 

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998: Not 

Applicable as there was no reportable event during the period under review; 

 

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 

Regulations, 1993, regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; 

 

i. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018. 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

 

a. Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India; 

b. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015. 

 

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, rules, regulations and 

guidelines etc. mentioned above except: 

i. Website of the Company was not updated as prescribed in Regulation 46 of Sebi (Listing Obligation and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulation 2015. 

ii. The Company have not made entries in the SDD Software with in the time limit prescribed 

iii. The Company have not filed Statement of Deviation as per Regulation 32 of Sebi (Listing Obligation and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulation 2015 with respect to Preferential Issue of Shares and Share Warrants. 

iv. Outcome of Board Meeting for Approval of Financial Results for the Half Financial Year ended March 31, 

2024 was not given within 30 minutes of the Closure of the Board Meeting. 

v. The Company has failed to comply with Regulation 44(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulation, 2015 with respect to submission of voting results of Annual General Meeting 

held on September 30, 2024. 

vi. The Company has failed to comply with SEBI circular no SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/00094 dated 

June 21, 2023 which prescribe for Listed Companies to make an application for trading approval to the stock 

exchange/s within 7 working days from the date of grant of listing approval by the stock exchange. However, 

51



 

Annual Report 2024-25 
 
 
 

Company has made a delay of 4 days for making application of trading approval in case of preferential 

allotment. 

vii. The Company has failed to comply with Section 123(4) with respect to transfer of dividend amount in a 

scheduled bank in a separate account within five days from the date of declaration of such dividend. 

viii. The Company has not disclosed the pre preferential holding of one of the allottee at the time of filing the in-

principle application due to which the post shareholding percentage disclosure in the notice was not in 

compliance of Regulation 163 of SEBI ICDR Regulation. 

ix. The Company has failed to comply with Regulation 167(1) & 167 (2) of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018 

with respect to lock – in of Shar Warrants which were locked in with delay. 

x. The Company has failed to comply with Regulation 167(6) of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018 with respect 

to lock -in of pre-preferential shareholding of allottees from the relevant date up to a period of 90 trading 

days from the date of trading approval. 

xi. The Company has failed to submit the Annual Disclosure required under Regulation 31(5) of (Substantial 

Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011to the Stock Exchange. 

 

We further report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and on the examination of 

the relevant documents and records in pursuance thereof, on test -check basis the Company has complied with the 

specific laws to the extent applicable to the Company; 

We further report that, 

 

1. The Board of Directors of the Company is constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-

Executive Directors and Independent Directors and women director. The change in the composition of the 

Board of Directors that took place during the period under review, were carried out in compliance with the 

provisions of the Act.  

 

2. We further report that adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings and agenda 

and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and 

obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful 

participation at the meeting.  

 

3. All the decisions of the Board and Committees thereof were carried out with the requisite majority; 

 

We further report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and on examination of the 

relevant documents and records in pursuance thereof, on test-check basis, the 

Company has complied with other Acts, Laws and Regulations applicable specifically to the Company i.e. 

Information Technology Act, 2000 as amended from time to time;  

 

We report that during the Audit Period the events which are took place and which had a major bearing on the 

Company’s affairs are listed below: 

 

i. The Company has allotted in 6,85,100 Equity Shares on Preferential Basis to Non – Promoter Shareholders 

on May 02, 2024 

 

ii.  The Company has allotted in 1,51,900 Equity Shares on Preferential Basis to Promoter Shareholders on 

May 02, 2024. 
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iii. The Company has allotted 22,32,000 convertible warrants, on preferential basis to Promoters group and 

Non-Promoters on May 13, 2024. 

 

iv. Mr. Akash Anant Bate have been appointed as Company Secretary and Compliance Officer with effect from 

May 14, 2024.  

 

v. Mrs. Sujata Ravindra Hegde have been appointed as Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of the Company with 

effect from May 14, 2024. 

 

vi. M/s. GTA & Co., Chartered Accountants, have resigned as Statutory Auditor of the Company with effect 

from August 19, 2024. The resignation has been attributed to a lack of consensus on the proposed revision of 

professional fees. 

 

vii. M/s. YRKDAJ & Associates LLP (FRN: W100288) have been appointed as Statutory Auditor of the 

Company to fill up the Casual Vacancy and also for the period of Five (5) Years. 

 

viii. Mr. Kapildeo Ramswarup Agrawal resigned from the position of Non-Executive Independent Director of the 

Company, with effect from October 11, 2024. 

 

ix. The Company has allotted 7,54,141 Equity Shares pursuant to conversion of Warrants in to Equity Shares or 

various dates. 

 

x. Mr. Rudra Narayan Kar  have been appointed as an Additional Director (Category – Independent) with effect 

from January 09, 2025. 

 

xi. Mr. Akash Anant Bate have resigned from the post of Company Secretary and Compliance Officer with 

effect from February 20, 2025.  

 

 

For MISHRA & ASSOCIATES 

Company Secretaries 

 

Sd/- 

 

Manishkumar Premnath Mishra 

Proprietor  

Membership No. 41066 

C. P. No. 18303                                                                                          

FRN: S2017MH516400 

PR NO.: 2157/2022                                                                                          Date: 25.08.2025 

UDIN:  A041066G001072272                                                                         Place: Mumbai 

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure ‘A’ and forms an integral 

part of this report.  
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Annexure ‘A’ 

To, 

The Members of 

KHFM HOSPITALITY AND FACILITY MANAGEMENT SERVICES LIMITED 

01, Nirma Plaza, Makhwana Road, Marol Naka,  

Andheri (East), Mumbai – 400059, Maharashtra, India. 

 

Our Secretarial Audit Report of even date is to be read along with this letter: 

 

1. MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY 

 

It is the responsibility of the management of the Company to maintain secretarial records, devise proper systems to 

ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and regulations and to ensure that the systems are 

adequate and operate effectively. 

 

2. AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY 

(a) Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records, standards and procedures followed by 

the Company with respect to secretarial compliances. 

 

(b) We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about 

the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that 

correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe, the processes and practices that we followed 

provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. We also believe that audit evidence and information obtained 

from the Company's management is adequate and appropriate for us to provide a basis for our opinion. 

(c) We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the 

Company. 

 

(d) Wherever required, we have obtained the management's representation about the compliance of laws, rules 

and regulations and happening of events, etc. 

 

(e) The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the 

responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis. 

 

3. DISCLAIMER 

 

The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or 

effectiveness with which management has conducted the affairs of the company. 

 

For MISHRA & ASSOCIATES 

Company Secretaries 

 

Sd/- 

 

Manishkumar Premnath Mishra 

Proprietor  

Membership No. 41066 

C. P. No. 18303                                                                                          

FRN: S2017MH516400 

PR NO.: 2157/2022                                                                                          Date: 25.08.2025 

UDIN:  A041066G001072272                                                                         Place: Mumbai 
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ANNEXURE - VI  

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS  

Forward-looking statement  

This Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations contains forward-

looking statements that reflect the Company’s current expectations, assumptions, projections, and beliefs 

concerning future events, business performance, and strategies. These statements may include expressions such 

as “believe,” “anticipate,” “expect,” “estimate,” “intend,” “project,” “forecast,” or similar terminology and are 

made in compliance with applicable Indian securities laws and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”). 

These forward-looking statements are based on certain assumptions and expectations regarding future 

developments, many of which are inherently uncertain and beyond the control of the Company. While the 

management believes the assumptions are reasonable, there can be no assurance that such expectations will prove 

to be accurate or that the anticipated events and developments will materialize as planned. Actual results, 

performance, or achievements may differ materially from those projected in such statements due to various factors 

including, but not limited to, changes in the macroeconomic environment, regulatory and policy shifts, 

fluctuations in input costs, currency volatility, market dynamics, technological disruptions, supply chain 

constraints, or unforeseen geopolitical or climatic events. 

The Company expressly disclaims any obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements, 

whether as a result of new information, future events, or otherwise, unless legally mandated under applicable law. 

Stakeholders are advised to interpret such statements with caution and in conjunction with the Company’s audited 

financial statements and accompanying notes. 

In accordance with Regulation 34 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, every listed entity is required to furnish a 

Management Discussion and Analysis Report (“MDAR”) as part of the Board’s Report to the shareholders. 

Further, as prescribed under Schedule V of the said Regulations, the MDAR must cover the following specific 

areas: 

• Industry structure and developments 

• Opportunities and threats 

• Segment-wise or product-wise performance 

• Outlook 

• Risk and concerns 

• Internal control systems and their adequacy 

• Discussion on financial performance with respect to operational performance 

• Material developments in human resources / industrial relations, including number of people employed 

The MDAR presented herein is aligned with the aforementioned requirements and is aimed at providing the 

Company’s shareholders and other stakeholders with a comprehensive, transparent, and insightful view of the 

business environment, strategic direction, risk landscape, financial and operational performance, and the long-

term growth roadmap of the Company. 

1. ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT - AN OVERVIEW 
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GLOBAL ECONOMY 

The global economy continues to undergo a phase of moderated expansion amid a complex interplay of structural 

and cyclical forces. As per the latest World Economic Outlook released by the International Monetary Fund (IMF), 

global output growth is projected at 3.2% in calendar years 2024 and 2025, supported by resilient services activity, 

gradual easing of inflation, and stable demand in emerging markets. The World Bank, in its June 2024 Global 

Economic Prospects, projects a slightly lower trajectory of 2.6% in 2024 and 2.7% in 2025, indicating a slower 

pace of recovery due to tight financial conditions and global trade moderation. 

Inflation, which had surged in the post-pandemic period due to supply bottlenecks, commodity price volatility, 

and demand-side imbalances, is now exhibiting signs of easing across most major economies. Global headline 

inflation is forecasted to decline to 4.3% in 2025, owing to the cumulative impact of monetary policy tightening 

by central banks, improved global logistics, and easing energy prices. However, core inflation particularly in 

services and housing remains elevated in several jurisdictions, posing challenges for monetary authorities 

navigating the delicate balance between price stability and growth revival. 

Advanced economies, which include the United States, Eurozone countries, Japan, and others, are projected to 

grow at a subdued pace of 1.4% in 2025, reflecting tight credit conditions, high sovereign debt levels, and 

weakening consumer demand. In contrast, emerging market and developing economies are expected to expand 

by around 4.1%, led by strong domestic consumption, infrastructure-led investments, and a demographic dividend 

that continues to support medium-term growth. The global economic environment continues to be shaped by 

evolving risks including trade fragmentation, regional conflicts, and climate-related shocks, which require 

concerted multilateral responses to preserve financial and economic stability. 

INDIAN ECONOMY 

India continues to reinforce its position as a global growth engine and the world’s fastest-growing major economy, 

underpinned by resilient domestic demand, strong fiscal management, and a vibrant entrepreneurial ecosystem. 

As per estimates from the Ministry of Statistics and Programme Implementation (MoSPI), India’s real GDP grew 

by 8.2% in FY 2023–24, driven by strong manufacturing output, buoyant services activity, and robust investment 

flows. Growth is expected to moderate to between 6.3% and 6.7% in FY 2024–25, reflecting a more stable and 

sustainable expansion path, while the World Bank has forecast GDP growth of 6.3% for FY 2025–26. This steady 

performance is attributed to a conducive policy environment, rising public capex, and steady private consumption, 

supported by macroeconomic and monetary stability. 

One of the key contributors to this growth has been the Government’s significant investments in physical 

infrastructure, including highways, urban metro systems, smart cities, and logistics corridors. These initiatives, 

coupled with supportive reforms in taxation, digital governance, and the production-linked incentive (PLI) 

schemes across various sectors, have revitalized private investment sentiment. The services sector, particularly 

information technology, financial services, and hospitality, has exhibited strong traction, while the construction 

and manufacturing sectors continue to benefit from increased infrastructure deployment. However, the agriculture 

sector faced headwinds due to uneven monsoon conditions and regional climatic uncertainties, underscoring the 

need for climate-resilient practices in rural India. 

India’s inflation outlook remains favorable, with headline Consumer Price Index (CPI) inflation averaging 4.3% 

in FY 2024–25, comfortably within the Reserve Bank of India’s target range of 2%–6%. For FY 2025–26, 

inflation is expected to remain range-bound between 3.7% and 4.2%, aided by food price stability, targeted fiscal 

spending, and monetary prudence. The Indian economy continues to exhibit robust macroeconomic fundamentals, 

including a manageable current account deficit, strong forex reserves of over Rs. 64 lakh crore, and a stable 

currency supported by net capital inflows and remittance strength 

The long-term economic vision for India is shaped by the objective of becoming a high middle-income country 

by 2047, coinciding with the centenary of independence. In line with this aspiration, policy emphasis is being 

placed on inclusive development, green energy transition, skill development, and structural reforms that enhance 

productivity and formalisation. India remains committed to achieving its Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs), 
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including its nationally determined contributions (NDCs), with a target of reaching net-zero carbon emissions by 

2070 through clean energy investments, electric mobility, and carbon-neutral infrastructure. 

FACILITY MANAGEMENT 

The Indian Facility Management (FM) industry continues to witness robust growth and structural transformation, 

emerging as a critical enabler of operational excellence across sectors. According to recent industry research by 

Technavio, the Indian FM market is projected to grow at a compound annual growth rate (CAGR) of 

approximately 20.5% during 2024–2029, significantly higher than global averages. The industry is estimated to 

be valued at over Rs.13.5 lakh crore in 2025 and is expected to surpass Rs.19 lakh crore by 2030, fuelled by the 

rapid expansion of commercial and residential infrastructure, increasing preference for outsourced services, 

evolving regulatory frameworks, and rising expectations of safety, hygiene, and sustainability in built 

environments. 

A prominent trend reshaping the industry is the transition towards Integrated Facility Management (IFM), which 

combines multiple services such as HVAC operations, fire safety systems, electrical and electromechanical 

maintenance, water management, pest control, housekeeping, and security under a unified service delivery model. 

IFM is gaining preference due to its inherent ability to streamline vendor interactions, reduce operational costs, 

and deliver data-driven performance metrics that improve efficiency and asset longevity. This bundling of services 

also supports scalability, standardisation, and compliance especially critical for large organisations operating 

across multiple locations. 

Technology is increasingly emerging as the cornerstone of facility operations. Innovations such as IoT enabled 

building management systems, AI-based predictive maintenance tools, cloud-integrated work order management 

platforms, and real-time resource tracking are revolutionising service delivery. These digital enablers enhance 

transparency, ensure service continuity, and enable proactive issue resolution leading to improved client 

satisfaction and cost savings. As organisations adopt smart building technologies and digitised infrastructure, FM 

providers must invest in upskilling their workforce, enhancing digital literacy, and integrating emerging 

technologies into their delivery frameworks. 

Simultaneously, environmental, social, and governance (ESG) imperatives are influencing client procurement 

preferences. Businesses are increasingly evaluating facility partners on their ability to provide green services, 

ensure workforce diversity, follow ethical procurement, and support energy-efficient building operations. ESG-

focused facility management includes waste segregation, energy audits, water conservation initiatives, use of eco-

friendly cleaning materials, and compliance with green building certifications such as IGBC and LEED. 

India, along with other Asia-Pacific economies, is rapidly emerging as a regional leader in the facility management 

sector. The formalisation of this industry, previously fragmented and unorganized is gaining momentum with the 

entry of large players, increased consolidation, and a growing shift from manpower-driven models to tech-enabled 

service platforms. Urbanisation trends, growing infrastructure investments, and government-led initiatives such 

as the Smart Cities Mission are accelerating the demand for organised FM services in metro and Tier-II cities 

alike. 

KHFM is strategically positioned to capitalise on these sectoral shifts. With its robust pan-India presence, deep 

experience in both soft and technical services, strong digital capabilities, and a client-centric operating model, the 

Company is well-aligned to meet the evolving needs of large institutional and corporate clients. Its continued 

focus on ESG compliant practices, integrated service delivery, and innovation-led efficiency ensures that KHFM 

remains a preferred partner in the facility management industry’s dynamic and competitive landscape. 

2. OPPORTUNITY & THREATS 

The Indian facility management industry is currently experiencing a paradigm shift, driven by the growing 

emphasis on outsourcing non-core operations and a preference for specialised, tech-enabled services. This 

transformation is being fueled by diverse sectors including infrastructure, healthcare, retail, IT/ITES, 

manufacturing, logistics, and real estate, all of which are increasingly relying on professional facility service 

providers to manage their day-to-day operational requirements. This change has been accelerated by the rising 
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complexity of infrastructure, the need for hygiene and compliance post-pandemic, and the pressure to optimise 

costs while improving service efficiency. As companies seek to streamline their operations, improve productivity, 

and enhance the user experience of physical assets and workspaces, demand for integrated and scalable facility 

solutions continues to grow. 

The digitalisation of facility management is another major catalyst shaping the future of the sector. Technologies 

such as Artificial Intelligence (AI), the Internet of Things (IoT), cloud-based facility platforms, and intelligent 

video surveillance are revolutionising how services are delivered and monitored. These technologies allow for 

predictive and condition-based maintenance, energy optimisation, real-time issue tracking, automation of 

repetitive tasks, and more agile reporting systems, thereby driving measurable value to clients. Furthermore, the 

deployment of Building Management Systems (BMS) and smart sensors is empowering service providers to 

achieve energy efficiency, ensure occupant safety, and meet sustainability benchmarks. 

India’s rapid urbanisation and real estate expansion are also contributing significantly to the sector’s growth. The 

influx of urban populations, coupled with increasing demand for residential, commercial, and institutional spaces, 

has created a surge in demand for structured and compliant facility management. Major government-led initiatives 

such as the Smart Cities Mission, AMRUT, and the continued development of metro, airport, and highway 

infrastructure have opened avenues for long-term facility management contracts. Regulatory reforms such as the 

Real Estate (Regulation and Development) Act (RERA) have further institutionalised the sector and enhanced the 

scope of professional FM services in both greenfield and brownfield developments. 

The evolving nature of workplaces, especially after the pandemic, has resulted in hybrid work models, remote 

operations, and decentralised office structures, which demand customised, responsive, and health-conscious 

facility management strategies. Clients are increasingly looking for partners who can manage sanitisation, health 

and wellness, air quality control, touchless access systems, and integrated workplace management solutions. 

These trends have created an unprecedented opportunity for organised FM companies like KHFM to build 

differentiated offerings and deepen their value proposition to enterprise clients. 

Despite this favourable environment, the facility management industry faces certain operational, regulatory, and 

economic challenges. One of the foremost concerns is the shortage of trained and skilled manpower, particularly 

for technical functions such as HVAC systems, fire safety, MEP (mechanical, electrical, and plumbing) services, 

and occupational health and safety compliance. High attrition levels, especially among frontline workers, coupled 

with the lack of standardised training infrastructure, often lead to service inconsistency, increased onboarding 

costs, and client dissatisfaction. 

The rapid pace of technological change, while offering opportunities, also poses integration and cost-related 

challenges. Implementing digital solutions across geographically dispersed client sites requires substantial capital 

investment, robust IT infrastructure, and domain expertise. Smaller companies find it difficult to scale such 

platforms profitably, whereas larger players face challenges in ensuring consistency in service levels, 

cybersecurity risks, and change management at the client interface. Additionally, the increasing push from clients 

for value-based pricing models and outcome-driven contracts exerts pressure on operating margins. 

Another threat to the sector is the intensifying cost sensitivity among clients, especially in the context of 

macroeconomic uncertainties and volatile input costs such as wages, fuel, and raw materials. Balancing 

expectations for high service quality with tight financial controls is a constant concern for FM providers, 

particularly in price-competitive tenders and large-volume contracts. Further, the regulatory environment, 

including labour laws, environmental compliance, and health and safety norms, requires companies to stay agile 

and continuously invest in governance mechanisms. 

KHFM acknowledges these risks and is actively addressing them through focused investments in workforce 

development, technology innovation, and digital transformation. The Company continues to prioritise client-

centricity, quality assurance, and scalable service models to mitigate external threats and unlock sustainable value. 

By fostering collaborative partnerships, building operational resilience, and maintaining a strong compliance 

posture, KHFM is well-positioned to navigate industry risks and leverage structural opportunities for long-term 

growth. 
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3. SEGMENT - WISE OR PRODUCT- WISE PERFORMANCE 

KHFM Hospitality and Facility Management Services Limited operates within the Integrated Hospitality and 

Facility Management (IHFM) space, delivering end-to-end services across both hard and soft facility domains. 

The Company’s value proposition lies in its ability to provide unified solutions through a combination of 

mechanised housekeeping, pest control, security and surveillance services, horticulture and landscaping, 

sanitation, building operations and maintenance (O&M), and specialised technical support functions such as 

electrical, HVAC, fire safety, and plumbing systems. 

During the year under review, KHFM strengthened its operational footprint across multiple service verticals, 

catering to a broad and diversified client base. This includes central and state government departments, public 

sector undertakings (PSUs), municipal corporations, Indian Railways, major infrastructure projects, and private 

sector enterprises across manufacturing, healthcare, education, and commercial real estate. The Company 

continued to execute complex facility management assignments involving large-area operations, stringent service 

level agreements (SLAs), and high workforce mobilisation, all of which were delivered with a strong focus on 

compliance, responsiveness, and customer satisfaction. 

A significant share of revenue was derived from long-tenured contracts with government and quasi-government 

clients, which provide revenue stability and visibility. In parallel, KHFM deepened its presence in high-potential 

sectors such as industrial manufacturing parks, healthcare institutions, urban civic infrastructure, and railways, 

which offer large scale, recurring service opportunities. Notably, the Company’s tailored service delivery models, 

built on rigorous site-level supervision and digital monitoring tools, allowed it to maintain performance standards 

while managing cost efficiency. 

KHFM’s segmental strategy is anchored in delivering integrated and bundled services to clients seeking a single-

point FM partner. This approach reduces operational fragmentation, enhances accountability, and ensures end-to-

end oversight of critical building functions. Through the deployment of trained manpower, mobile command 

centres, IoT-based service dashboards, and compliance reporting tools, KHFM has created a differentiated 

execution model in the IHFM industry. 

To sustain future growth, the Company is strategically expanding its offerings in the domains of energy 

management, ESG-aligned services, and green housekeeping. Investments are being made in mechanisation, 

training academies, and standard operating procedures (SOPs) to ensure consistent service quality across regions. 

KHFM’s product-wise performance continues to reflect a strong alignment between its integrated service 

capabilities and the evolving expectations of clients operating in regulated, high-footfall, and mission-critical 

environments. 

Our service offerings include the following broad services which are offered by our Company as indicated below: 
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4. OUTLOOK 

The outlook for the Indian facility management sector remains fundamentally strong, supported by an evolving 

demand landscape, regulatory momentum, infrastructure expansion, and the growing maturity of the outsourcing 

ecosystem. As organisations increasingly seek partners who can deliver integrated, technology-led, and ESG-

compliant solutions, the industry is expected to continue on a high-growth trajectory over the next five years. 

According to industry estimates, the Indian FM market is projected to grow at a compounded annual growth rate 

(CAGR) of over 15% between FY 2025 and FY 2030, reaching a value of more than Rs.19 lakh crore by the end 

of the decade. 

Key macro-level growth drivers include sustained urbanisation, increasing investments in Tier 2 and Tier 3 city 

infrastructure, proliferation of co-working and hybrid workplaces, heightened focus on hygiene and safety, and 

the digitisation of asset management. Government-led initiatives such as the PM GatiShakti National Master Plan, 

National Infrastructure Pipeline (NIP), and the Smart Cities programme are expected to further boost the demand 

for structured, compliant, and accountable FM services. Simultaneously, the global shift toward net-zero buildings 

and sustainable built environments is pushing clients to adopt green facility management practices. 

On the global front, the Asia-Pacific region is emerging as a dominant market for facility services, led by countries 

like India, China, and Indonesia. The demand for integrated workplace solutions, energy-efficient buildings, and 

digital building ecosystems is growing, particularly across commercial real estate, transport hubs, educational 

institutions, and healthcare infrastructure. India’s cost competitiveness, growing pool of skilled facility 

professionals, and maturing service providers make it a preferred FM destination for multinationals and global 

facility outsourcing programmes. 

KHFM is strategically aligned to capitalise on this opportunity-rich environment. With a well-diversified 

portfolio, operational presence across urban and semi-urban locations, and deep domain expertise in integrated 

service delivery, the Company is ideally placed to cater to the rising demand for professional FM services. 

KHFM’s continued investments in digital technologies, mobile workforce solutions, and AI-driven operational 

analytics are expected to further strengthen service responsiveness and scalability. 

Looking ahead, the Company intends to deepen its penetration into growth verticals such as industrial logistics, 

healthcare facilities, civic urban infrastructure, smart townships, and railway stations, where integrated and 

compliant facility services are critical. KHFM also aims to enhance its ESG offerings by promoting energy 

conservation, water reuse, waste segregation, and inclusive workforce policies. With a robust order pipeline, 

strategic government contracts, and long-term partnerships with marquee clients, KHFM is poised to consolidate 

its leadership position and deliver sustained value to stakeholders in the years ahead. 
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5. RISK AND CONCERN 

 

Risks Risk Mitigation 

Economic Risk The Company recognises the impact of macroeconomic cycles, policy changes, and 

inflationary trends on business continuity. To mitigate this, KHFM follows a strategy of 

sectoral and geographical diversification, reducing reliance on any single industry or 

region. By operating across stable and counter-cyclical sectors, the Company maintains 

revenue visibility and minimises exposure to broad-based economic downturns. 

People Risk Given the labor-intensive nature of the facility management sector, challenges related to 

skill availability and retention persist. KHFM addresses this through structured training, 

regular upskilling, employee engagement, and robust onboarding systems. These 

initiatives help reduce attrition, improve workforce quality, and ensure continuity across 

diverse client sites. 

Financial Risk Liquidity management and timely collection of receivables are critical to operational 

stability. KHFM maintains financial discipline through prudent working capital 

management, active receivable monitoring, and strong credit control mechanisms. A 

structured collection process and internal review systems support cash flow visibility and 

timely payments. 

Competition Risk The facility management industry is highly competitive, with pricing pressures and service 

differentiation challenges. KHFM maintains its edge through integrated service offerings, 

digital capabilities, strict SLA adherence, and continuous performance benchmarking. 

These efforts enhance service quality and client retention. 

Post-Pandemic 

Operational Risk 

The post-COVID environment demands greater resilience and safety compliance. KHFM 

has institutionalised hybrid service models, remote monitoring tools, and robust health and 

safety protocols. These adaptive measures ensure operational continuity and preparedness 

for future disruptions. 

Efficiency and 

Innovation Risk 

As client expectations evolve, there is increased demand for tech-enabled, outcome-

oriented solutions. KHFM mitigates this risk by fostering a culture of innovation and 

continuous improvement. The Company actively invests in process optimisation, 

automation, and digital transformation to ensure scalability, service efficiency, and 

alignment with client-specific goals. 

 

6. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM 

KHFM Hospitality and Facility Management Services Limited has instituted a robust and well-documented 

internal control framework, meticulously designed to ensure sound governance, operational efficiency, and strict 

regulatory compliance across all levels of the organisation. This framework forms the backbone of the Company’s 

risk management strategy and facilitates transparency, accountability, and integrity in day-to-day operations. The 

internal controls are embedded into every functional area including finance, procurement, service delivery, human 

resources, statutory compliance, and project execution and are tailored to accommodate the specific operational 

intricacies of the integrated facility management industry. 

The Company’s internal control systems are reviewed on a periodic basis and are continuously calibrated to 

address evolving operational risks, changing regulatory requirements, and the increasing complexity of multi-

location service delivery. The objective is to ensure that controls remain aligned with best-in-class industry 

practices, support real-time decision-making, and provide assurance on the reliability of financial reporting, 

safeguarding of assets, and adherence to internal policies and external obligations. 
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A structured internal audit mechanism is in place, facilitated by a dedicated Internal Audit team under the 

supervision of the Audit Committee of the Board. The audit process covers key operational, financial, and 

compliance parameters across all major locations, and evaluates adherence to standard operating procedures 

(SOPs), efficiency of resource deployment, and alignment with client expectations. Audit findings and 

recommendations are reviewed at the management level, and corrective actions are promptly implemented to 

mitigate identified gaps. 

The Company has also made significant progress in adopting digital technologies to enhance the effectiveness of 

internal controls. Tools such as enterprise resource planning (ERP) systems, biometric attendance, compliance 

tracking dashboards, and real-time reporting mechanisms have been integrated into internal operations, allowing 

for tighter monitoring, better exception handling, and improved oversight across multiple touchpoints. The finance 

and compliance functions are supported by automated workflows to ensure accuracy, reduce manual intervention, 

and reinforce control consistency. 

KHFM’s commitment to internal control excellence is further reflected in its emphasis on training and upskilling 

of employees responsible for governance functions. Regular workshops, policy orientation programmes, and 

compliance certifications are conducted to ensure a uniform understanding and implementation of internal control 

standards across the organisation. In a dynamic regulatory environment, this proactive approach to governance 

enables KHFM to anticipate emerging risks, respond with agility, and maintain its reputation as a compliant and 

dependable service provider. 

7. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE 

The financial performance of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2025, reflects continued growth 

momentum, improved operational execution, and enhanced financial resilience. 

During FY 2024–25, the Company recorded Standalone Revenue from Operations of Rs. 9,518.25 lakh, compared 

with Rs. 10,744.51 lakh in FY 2023–24. Standalone EBITDA (including other income) stood at Rs. 1,092.26 lakh 

in FY 2024–25, compared with Rs. 1,042.27 lakh in FY 2023–24. The Standalone Profit after Tax (PAT) for the 

year was Rs. 324.65 lakh in FY 2024–25, compared with Rs. 346.46 lakh in FY 2023–24. 

 

We secured new work orders valued at approximately Rs. 7,927.82 lakh during the year, reaffirming our strong 

market presence and execution capabilities. 

 

The Company’s financial performance is a testament to the strength of its integrated business model, the durability 

of its client relationships, and its strategic agility in responding to market dynamics. The consistent improvement 

in profitability, achieved without compromising on compliance or service quality, underscores KHFM’s ability 

to deliver value to stakeholders even in a challenging environment marked by inflationary pressures and evolving 

client demands. 

The Company remains focused on further strengthening its financial position through service innovation, 

disciplined cost management, and diversification across industry verticals and geographies. 

8. MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN HUMAN RESOURCES/ INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS FRONT, 

INCLUDING NUMBER OF PEOPLE EMPLOYED. 

KHFM firmly believes that its human capital is the cornerstone of its long-term success and a key enabler of 

operational excellence. As of March 31, 2025, the Company employed a workforce of over 2,500 individuals, 

including permanent employees and contractual personnel deployed across a pan-India network of client sites. 

The workforce comprises a diverse mix of technical staff, facility supervisors, customer support personnel, 

security officers, sanitation workers, horticulture professionals, and skilled and semi-skilled technicians, 

reflecting the breadth and complexity of KHFM’s integrated service offerings. 

The Company’s human resource strategy is centred around fostering a culture of learning, meritocracy, and 

employee well-being. KHFM has institutionalised robust training and development programmes designed to 

enhance domain-specific competencies, leadership acumen, and service excellence. These include on-the-job 

training, health and safety certifications, workshops on compliance and behavioural skills, and digital skill 
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development modules aimed at creating a future-ready workforce. The Company operates multiple training 

centres and collaborates with external institutes to deliver certified training courses for upskilling its workforce, 

particularly in areas such as HVAC systems, fire safety, facility automation, and customer service. 

The performance management framework at KHFM is designed to be transparent, feedback-oriented, and aligned 

with the Company’s strategic goals. Individual and team performance is monitored through key result areas 

(KRAs), regular appraisals, and structured reviews that promote accountability, recognise excellence, and identify 

high-potential talent for future leadership roles. The Company also runs incentive programmes and employee 

engagement initiatives aimed at fostering a sense of belonging, improving retention, and driving productivity 

across all levels. 

With the ongoing digital transformation of the facility management industry, KHFM has digitised its core HR 

processes, including recruitment, onboarding, attendance tracking, payroll, compliance documentation, and 

performance monitoring. The adoption of human capital management (HCM) systems has improved decision-

making, reduced administrative inefficiencies, and enhanced employee experience through better accessibility 

and process transparency. 

In recognition of the increasingly diverse and mobile nature of its workforce, KHFM has adopted inclusive and 

flexible HR practices. These include gender-sensitive policies, health and wellness initiatives, and grievance 

redressal mechanisms designed to ensure a safe and equitable working environment. The Company has also taken 

proactive steps to align with evolving employment models, including the structured use of gig workers and part-

time support staff to meet fluctuating client demands while ensuring compliance with labour laws. 

Industrial relations during the year remained stable and constructive. KHFM continued to maintain an open and 

collaborative dialogue with employees and union representatives, ensuring proactive resolution of issues and 

implementation of fair employment practices. The Company is deeply committed to promoting occupational 

health and safety and has implemented stringent protocols, including regular site audits, safety drills, and 

compliance training, to minimize workplace risks. 

Looking ahead, KHFM will continue to invest in building a high-performing, agile, and inclusive workforce that 

can support the Company’s strategic ambitions and meet the growing expectations of clients. By embedding 

learning, innovation, and employee-centricity into its HR framework, KHFM aims to position itself as an 

employer of choice in the Indian facility management industry. 

9. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS 

During the financial year, the details of significant changes in key financial ratios as compared to the previous 

year, along with remarks, are summarized below: 

Particulars 
As at March 

31, 2025 

As at March 

31, 2024 

% of change 

in ratio 
Remarks 

Current Ratio 2.03 1.77 -14.63% 

Improvement in current ratio due to 

increase in receivables, inventories and 

other current assets 

Debt-Equity 

Ratio 
0.89 1.23 27.45% 

Improvement in debt equity ratio due to 

proceeds from issue of shares/warrants on 

preferential basis during the year. 

Debt Service 

Coverage Ratio 
1.13 1.21 7.14% 

The Company managed to earn enough 

profit to cover its interest payments by 

cutting down on other expenses. 

Return on 

Equity Ratio 

(%) 

5.71% 7.29% 21.57% 

Average networth has increased compared 

to previous year on account of proceeds 

from issue of shares/warrants on 

preferential basis. Accordingly Return on 

equity has reduced. 
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Inventory 

Turnover Ratio 
2.90 10.75 73.00% 

Stock of Inventory has been increased 

significantly as compared to previous year. 

Trade 

Receivables 

Turnover Ratio 

3.34 4.74 29.48% 

Increase in average trade receivables 

resulted in decline of Trade receivables 

turnover ratio. 

Trade Payable 

Turnover Ratio 
15.93 12.10 -31.64% 

Average trade payables outstanding have 

been reduced comparatively from previous 

year. Outstanding Trade payables have 

been reduced in current year due to 

improvement in cashflow consequently 

from the proceeds from issue of 

shares/warrants on preferential basis. 

Net Capital 

Turnover Ratio 
1.63 2.29 28.84% 

Net worth has increased compared to 

previous year on account of proceeds from 

issue of shares/warrants on preferential 

basis. Accordingly, net capital turnover 

ratio has reduced. 

Net Profit Ratio 

(%) 
3.16% 3.08% -2.80% 

The Company manages to earn profit over 

a previous year due to reduction in cost 

attributable to project. 

Return on 

Capital 

Employed (%) 

19.11% 21.68% 11.84% 

Average net worth has increased compared 

to previous year on account of proceeds 

from issue of shares/warrants on 

preferential basis. Accordingly Return on 

capital employed has reduced. 

 

10. CAUTIONARY STATEMENT 

Statements in this Management Discussion and Analysis may include “forward-looking statements” within the 

meaning of applicable laws and regulations. These are based on certain assumptions and expectations of future 

events. Actual results may differ materially due to economic conditions, regulatory changes, amendments in tax 

laws, and other internal or external factors beyond the Company’s control. The Company undertakes no obligation 

to update such statements, except as required under applicable law. 

 

 

Sd/- 

 

Mr. Ravindra Hegde 

Managing Director 

DIN: 01821002 

 

Sd/- 

Mrs. Sujata Hegde 

Director & CFO 

DIN: 01829352 
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To
The Members 
KHFM Hospitality & Facility Management Services Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements                                                                                                         

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying Standalone financial statements of KHFM Hospitality & Facility Management Services 
st March, 2025, and the Statement of Profit and Loss 

(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year 
then ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies and 

 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone  
 and 

give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of 
the Company as at 31st March, 2025, and its profit (including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes 
in equity for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. 
sponsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone 

Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit 
of the standalone financial statements under the provision of the Act and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our 
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on standalone financial statements. 

Emphasis of Matter 

We draw attention to  

a) Note 30 of Standalone Financial Statements. The Company is exposed to various laws and regulations. 
Consequently, provisions and contingent liabilities disclosures may arise from direct and indirect tax 
proceedings, legal proceedings including employment/labour claims and other government regulatory matters. 
The company assesses the need to make provisions or to disclose a contingent liability on case-to-case basis 
considering the underlying facts of each litigation. As at 31st March, 2025, the Company has ascertained 
contingent liabilities of Rs. 3,040.54 lakhs which includes disputed Service tax, GST, ESIC, Income Tax 
liabilities and bank guarantees.  The eventual outcome of the litigations may remain uncertain and estimation at 
balance sheet date for ascertained/unascertained liabilities involves extensive judgement of management 
including input from legal counsel due to complexity of each litigation. But considering the facts of the case, the 
company and the tax advisors believe that the outcome should be in the favor of the company for its ascertained 
contingent liabilities.  
 

b) Note 39 of Standalone Financial Statements- Balances of certain trade receivables, trade and other payables 
(including payables to micro, small and medium enterprises, capital creditors), and loans & advances are subject 
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to third party confirmations. The management is confident that this process will not have any material impact on 
the financial statements. 

c) Note 11 of Standalone Financial Statements- Contract Assets disclosed in the standalone financial results, where 
there is an area of enhanced professional judgment relating to the recoverable work in progress (Contract Assets) 
amounting to Rs. 3911.04 lakhs representing the value of work completed but are pending to be billed on 
completion of billing milestones as on 31st March 2025. Recognition of unbilled revenue and related contract 
assets depends on various factors and judgements, contractual commitments, shifts in the scope of work, client-
induced delays, negotiation processes, and modifications to the billing cycle period including few of those which 
are awaiting final confirmations with clients of the company.  

 

While we note that the recoverability of such assets is subject to future outcome, we consider this to be an area 
of enhanced professional judgment due to the materiality of the amount. The management has represented that 
these balances are fully recoverable based on the progress of underlying projects. However, requisite provisions 
have been made against the same. 
 

d) Note 26 & Note 11 of Standalone Financial Statements. The recording system regard to site expenses and related 
site advances needs advancement to ensure completeness and relevant transaction trail. However, according to 
the management estimates, the said transactions are fairly stated in the financial statements. 
 

Our Opinion is not modified in respect of aforesaid Matters. 

Key Audit Matters  

matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of 
the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the 
standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion 
on these matters. 

The key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter 

Revenue recognition  

Revenue recognition was identified as key Audit Matter 
since-  

 There is an inherent risk around the accuracy and 
existing of revenues recognized considering the 
customized and complex nature of these contracts.  

 Application of Revenue Recognition accounting 
standard (Ind As 115  Revenue from contracts with 
customers) is complex and involves a number of 
key judgements and estimates in mainly identifying 
performance obligations, related transaction price 
and estimating the future cost to completion of these 
contracts, which is used to determine the percentage 
of completion of the relevant performance 
obligation.  

Our Audit Procedures on revenue recognized from fixed 
price contracts included:  

 Obtained an understanding of the systems, process 
and controls implemented by the management for 
recording and computing revenue and the 
associated contract assets. 

 On selected specific/statistical samples of contracts, 
we tested that the revenue recognized is in 
accordance with the revenue recognition 
accounting standard. 

 We selected a sample of continuing and new 
contracts and performed the following procedures: 

 We read the agreements with the customers 
to identify the distinct performance 
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 Due to large variety and complexity of contractual 
terms, significant judgements are required to 
estimate the amounts. If the actual amount differs 
from the amount estimated, this will have an impact 
on the the revenue recognized in the current period.  

 These contracts may involve onerous obligations 
which requires critical assessment of foreseeable 
losses to be made.   

 As at March 31st, 2025, contract assets of 
business operation comprises of Rs. 3911.04 lacs. 
Recoverability of certain contract 
assets are impacted due to several factors like 
the customer profile, delays in completion 
certification in certain projects due to long 
project tenure and project disputes and financial 
ability of the customers, etc. The assessment of the 
impairment of such contract assets requires 
significant management judgement. 
 

obligations, the transaction price and its 
allocation to the performance obligations in 
the contract and the classification of the 
contract for the basis of revenue 
recognition in accordance with Ind As 115. 
 

 For Fixed maintenance contracts, we 
verified the period of the contract with the 
customer agreements and the determination 
of the revenue. We verified if the revenue 
was recognized appropriately over the 
period of contract of services being 
rendered and whether the revenue 
recognized was based on the estimate of the 
amount of consideration to which the 
Company is entitled in exchange for 
transferring the services. 
 

 For Fixed price contracts, we have verified 
the measurement of revenue for the extent 
of delivery of performance obligations with 
the actual and estimated cost of efforts as 
per the projected budgets. 
 

 Evaluated the identification of performance 
obligations and the prescribed transaction. 

 
estimation of contract costs and onerous     
obligations, if any.  

 We performed analytical procedures as applicable 
for reasonableness of revenues disclosed and 
service offerings. 

 We:   
 Assessed that the estimates of costs to 

complete were reviewed and approved by 
appropriate designated management 
personnel;   
 

 Performed a retrospective analysis of costs 
incurred with estimated costs to identify 
significant variations and verified whether 
those variations are required to be 
considered in estimating the remaining 
costs to complete the contract; and   
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Inspected underlying documents and 
performed analytics to determine 
reasonableness of contract costs. 

 Our audit procedures included the following: 
   

 We evaluated the Company processes and  
controls relating to the monitoring of trade 
receivables and review of credit risks of 
customers.  We assessed the design and 
tested the operating effectiveness of 
relevant controls in relation to the process 
adopted by management for testing the 
impairment of these contract assets.  

 
 As a part of substantive audit procedures, 

we tested the ageing of contract assets. We 
examined the Our audit procedures 
included the following and ability to repay 
the debt based on historical payment trends 
and the reason for delay in collection of 
trade receivables including any project 
disputes. Further, we assessed the expected 
credit loss impairment and the receipts and 
certification after year-end. We assessed the 
disclosures on the contract assets in Note 11 
of financial statements. 

Allowance for doubtful debts/ Provision for Expected Credit Loss 

Allowance for doubtful debts was identified as key Audit 
Matter since-  

 
Receivables comprise a significant portion of the liquid 
assets of the Company. 
There is an inherent risk around the accuracy of the 

provided for, particularly in cases where resolution is in 
progress. 

The estimation of the allowance for trade receivables is 
a significant judgement area and accordingly is 
therefore considered a key audit matter. 

 

 We assessed the validity of material long 
outstanding receivables by considering, past 
payment history and unusual patterns to identify 
potentially impaired balances. 

 The assessment of the appropriateness of the 
allowance for trade receivables comprised a 
variety of audit procedures including: 

 Verifying the appropriateness and 
reasonableness of the assumptions applied 
in the 
receivables allowance. 

 To address the risk of management bias, we 
evaluated the results of our procedures 
against audit procedures on other key 
balances to assess whether or not there was 
an indication of bias. 
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Information  

include the standalone financial statements 

Report. 

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, 
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or 
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.  

When we read the Annual Report, If, we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to 
communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take necessary actions as applicable under the relevant laws 
and regulations. 

 

responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013  with 
respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, 
financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in 
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 
prescribed under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting 
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates 
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that 
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation 
and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the 

going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, of 
has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Board of Directors are  

 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole are free 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material 
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken 
on the basis of these standalone financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also: 
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Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud 
of error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risks of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omission, 
misrepresentation, of the override of internal control. 

 

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstance. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our 
opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial control with reference to standalone financial 
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by management and Board of Directors. 

 

audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the company ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 

ndalone financial 
statements or, if such disclosers are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 

Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the standalone financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transaction and events in a 
manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in aggregate make 
it probable that the economic decision of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. 
We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the 
results of our work and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the 
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our 
audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought 
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the currents period and are therefore the key audit matter. 
We describe the
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the 
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 
communication. 

Other Matters 
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a. The standalone financial statements of the company for the year ended March 31st, 2024 were audited by another 
auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements as on 30th May 2024. 
 

b. The figures for the previous periods / year are re-classified / re-arranged / re-grouped by the Management of the 
Company to make them comparable with current period.  

Our Opinion is not modified in respect of aforesaid Other Matters. 
 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1.  

 

paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

 

2. A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report to the extent applicable that: 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 
 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 
appears from our examination of those books. 
 

c) The Standalone financial statements dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of 
account. 
 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards 
prescribed under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 
 

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March 2025 taken on record 
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2025 from being appointed 
as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 

 
f) The modifications relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as  

stated in the paragraph 2B(f) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)  
Rules, 2014. 

 
g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company, and 

B  

B.  
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given to us: 

 
a. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigation as at 31st March 2025 on its financial 

position in its standalone financial statements- Refer Note 30 of  the standalone financial statements. 
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 b. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards, 
for material foreseeable losses, if any. The Company did not have any long-term derivative 
contracts. 

 c. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund by the Company. 

d.       i.  The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been  

               advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources  

               or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign  

               entities ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that  

               the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities  

               identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries")  

               or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

ii.    The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been    

         received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding  

         Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company  

         shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any  

         manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any  

          guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. Based on reasonable audit  

          procedures adopted by us, nothing has come to our notice that such representation contains any   

          material misstatement. 

iii Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and  appropriate in  
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the 
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (i) and (ii) above, 
contain any material misstatement 

e. As stated in Note 54 of the standalone financial statements, the Board of Directors of the Company 
have not declared or recommended any dividend for the financial year ended March 31, 2025.  

f.            Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used accounting software 
systems for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31st, 2025 which 
has the feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the 
year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software systems. Further, during the course of our 
audit we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with and the 
audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.  

 

C.      

 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the       

 Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the  

Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act.   

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) of the Act which are  

 required to be commented upon by us. 
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For YRKDAJ and Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants  
Firm Registration No.: W100288 
 
 

 
 
Rohit Teli 
Partner 
Membership No. 155581 
UDIN : 25155581BMIHXP2979 
Place: Mumbai 
Date:  18th June, 2025 
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A  

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements  section of our report 
to the members of KHFM Hospitality and Facility Management Services Limited of even date) 

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the books of 
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that:  

      i. (a) /client premises equipment, which due to their atypical nature or 
location/situation; has maintained records proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details 
and situation of Property
use of assets. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.  

(b) The Company, has a program of verification of property, plant and equipment, capital work

 

(c) 

 

(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not revalued 
its PPE (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year. 
 
(e) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, no proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the 
Company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) 
and rules made thereunder. 

ii. (a) 

 

)
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Name of the 
Bank 

Agreegate 
Working 
Capital limits 
sanctioned 

Nature of 
Assets 
offered as 
Security 

Quarter 
ended 

Amounts 
disclosed as per 
Quarterly 
return / 
Statement (Rs 
in lakhs) 

Amount as 
per books of 
Accounts   
(Rs in lakhs) 

Difference 
Amount         
(Rs in lakhs) 

Apna 
Sahakari 
Bank,   
 
Bank of 
India &  
 
State Bank 
of India  

Apna Shakari 
Bank -1895 
lakhs 
 
Bank of India- 
752 lakhs 
 
State Bank of 
India- 585 
lakhs 
 

Receivables, 
Inventory, 
Contract 
Assets (work 
in progress) 

Sept-
2024 7327.55 7906.75 (579.20) 

Apna 
Sahakari 
Bank,  
 
Bank of 
India &  
 
State Bank 
of India 

Apna Shakari 
Bank -1895 
lakhs 
 
Bank of India- 
752 lakhs 
 
State Bank of 
India- 585 
lakhs 
 

Receivables, 
Inventory, 
Contract 
Assets (work 
in progress) 

March-
2025 7354.63 8010.15 (655.52) 

 

Reason for difference 
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iii.  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made 
investments in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, 
secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties during the 
financial year Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iii) (a) (b) (c) (d) (e)and (f) of the Order are not applicable 
to the Company. 

iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company during the year has 
not granted any loan, made investment and provided guarantees and securities to the parties covered under 
Section 185 and 186 of the Act. Accordingly, clause (iv) of Paragraph 3 of the order is not applicable to the 
Company.  

v. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted 
any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the public during the year in terms of directives 
issued by the Reserve Bank of India or the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of 
the Act and the rules framed there under. Accordingly, paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company.  

vi. The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148 of the Act for 
any of the services rendered by the Company. 

vii. a) 
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Employee 
State 
insurance 
(ESIC), Act, 
1948 
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(b) 

 

   

 

 

 

The Finance 
Act,1994 

Service Tax 625.79 44.65 2007-2008, to 
2014-15 

Customs, Excise 
and Service Tax 
Appellate 
Tribunal. 

The Finance 
Act,1994 

Service Tax 763.61 57.27 April 2015-
March 2016 

Customs, Excise 
and Service Tax 
Appellate 
Tribunal. 

Employee State 
insurance 
(ESIC), Act, 
1948 

ESIC 15.07 3.76 April 2018- 
March 2019 

Appellate 
Authority -
Regional Office, 
Mumbai 

Goods and 
Service Tax 
Act, 2017 

Goods and 
Service Tax 

8.39 - 2018-19 Deputy 
Commissioner 
of State Tax 
(Appellate 
Authority) 

Goods and 
Service Tax 
Act, 2017 

Goods and 
Service Tax 

45.52 2.61 2019-20 Deputy 
Commissioner 
of State Tax 
(Appellate 
Authority) 

Goods and 
Service Tax 
Act, 2017 

Goods and 
Service Tax 

29.46 1.88 2020-21 Deputy 
Commissioner 
of State Tax 
(Appellate 
Authority) 

Goods and 
Service Tax 
Act, 2017 

Goods and 
Service Tax 

61.41 0.41 2021-22 Deputy 
Commissioner 
of State Tax 
(Appellate 
Authority) 
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Goods and 
Service Tax 
Act, 2017 

Goods and 
Service Tax 

34.69 2.71 2022-23 Deputy 
Commissioner 
of State Tax 
(Appellate 
Authority) 

Income Tax 
Act,1961 

Income Tax 488.83 - 2022-23 Commissioner 
of Income Tax 
(Appeals) 

 

viii. 
. 

ix. (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings to financial institutions, 
banks, government and dues to debenture holders or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.  

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures, we 
report that the Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or 
government or any government authority or any other lender. 

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has utilized the 
money obtained by way of term loans during the year for the purposes for which they were obtained. 

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us, and on an 
overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short term 
basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.  

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the financial 
statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on 
account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. 

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we report that 
the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint 
ventures or associate companies 

x. (a) The Company did not raise money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt 
instruments) during the year. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of 
the Company, the Company has made preferential allotment of equity shares and convertible warrants during 
the year. Out of the total warrants issued, 7,54,141 warrants have been converted into equity shares during the 
year. The said allotments have been made in compliance with the provisions of Sections 42 and 62 of the 
Companies Act, 2013. Further, the funds so raised have, prima facie, been applied for the purposes for which 
they were raised. 

xi (a) 
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b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section 

(12) of section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government and up to the date of this report.   

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the Company 
during the year. 

xii (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi    
      company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 
 

xiii. According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of the records of the 
Company, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act, where 
applicable, and details of such transaction have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required 
by the applicable Indian Accounting Standards  

xiv (a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with 
the size and nature of its business.  

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date, for the period under audit. 

xv  

 

     xvi  According to the information and explanations given to us and in our opinion, the Company is not required to 
be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi)(a), 
(b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.  

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Group does not have any Core Investment 
Company (CIC) as part of the Group as per the definition of Group contained in the Core Investment Companies 
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 and hence the reporting under clause (xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable. 

 xvii. The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the current financial year and the immediately preceding 
financial year.   

xviii. 

 

xix.  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and 
expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information 
accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and 
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which 
causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is 
not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a 
period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future 
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit 
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one 
year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due. 

xx. The provisions for Corporate Social responsibility are not applicable to the company. Accordingly, reporting 
under clause (xx) of the order is not applicable for the year. 
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xxi. The reporting under Clause (xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone financial 

statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been included in this report. 

 

For YRKDAJ and Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants  
Firm Registration No.: W100288 
 
 
 
 
 
Rohit Teli 
Partner 
Membership No. 155581 
UDIN : 25155581BMIHXP2979 
Place: Mumbai 
Date:  18th June, 2025 
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(Referred to in paragraph 2A (g   
section of our report  to the members of KHFM Hospitality and Facility Management Services Limited 
of even date) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements under 
Clause (i) of Sub-   

 

Opinion 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of KHFM Hospitality and Facility 
Management Services Limited  as of 31st March, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the 
standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.  
 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material aspects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to Standalone financial statements were 
operating effectively as at 31st March 2025, with the exception of the matters referred 

 d on the internal control over financial reporting criteria 
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

 
 

on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering 
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 

responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that 
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to 

ing of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy 
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as 
required under the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

 

financial statement based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit 
of Internal Fi
issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an 
audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we 
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and maintained and 
if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference 
financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design 
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and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on 

dgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
 

 
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements 

statements is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements 

ernal 
financial control with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that: 

(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions 
and dispositions of the assets of the company;  

(2) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of 
the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the 
company; and 

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or 
ave a material effect on the financial statements. 

 
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting  
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including 
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error 
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls 
with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control 
with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the 
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

 

For YRKDAJ and Associates LLP  
Chartered Accountants  
Firm Registration No.: W100288 
 
 
 
 
 
Rohit Teli 
Partner 
Membership No. 155581  
UDIN : 25155581BMIHXP2979 
Place: Mumbai 
Date:  18th June, 2025 
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To 
 
The Members 
KHFM Hospitality & Facility Management Service Limited 
 

 

 

 
We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial statements of  KHFM Hospitality & Facility 
Management Services Limited 

 which comprise  the 
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2025,  the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including 
Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the Consolidated Statement of 
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the Consolidated financial statements, including a 
summary of significant 

 

 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us ,the aforesaid 
Consolidated Financial Statements give the info
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally 

n 133 of the Act 
-

accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the Consolidated state of affairs of the Group, as at 31st 
March, 2025, and its Consolidated Income (including other comprehensive income), its Consolidated Cash 
flows and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended on that date. 
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The key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter 

Revenue recognition  

Revenue recognition was identified as key Audit Matter 
since-  

 There is an inherent risk around the accuracy and 
existing of revenues recognized considering the 
customized and complex nature of these contracts.  
 

 Application of Revenue Recognition accounting 
standard (Ind As 115  Revenue from contracts with 
customers) is complex and involves a number of 
key judgements and estimates in mainly identifying 
performance obligations, related transaction price 
and estimating the future cost to completion of these 
contracts, which is used to determine the percentage 
of completion of the relevant performance 
obligation.  

 
 Due to large variety and complexity of contractual 

terms, significant judgements are required to 
estimate the amounts. If the actual amount differs 
from the amount estimated, this will have an impact 
on the accuracy of the revenue recognized in the 
current period.  

 
 These contracts may involve onerous obligations 

which requires critical assessment of foreseeable 
losses to be made.   

 
 As at March 31st, 2025, contract assets of business 

operation comprises of Rs. 3946.23 lacs. 
Recoverability of certain contract assets are 
impacted due to several factors like the customer 
profile, delays in completion certification in certain 
projects due to long project tenure and project 
disputes and financial ability of the customers, etc. 
The assessment of the impairment of such contract 
assets requires significant management judgement. 
 

Our Audit Procedures on revenue recognized 
from fixed price contracts included:  

 Obtained an understanding of the 
systems, process and controls 
implemented by the management for 
recording and computing revenue and 
the associated contract assets. 

 On selected specific/statistical samples 
of contracts, we tested that the revenue 
recognized is in accordance with the 
revenue recognition accounting 
standard. 

 We selected a sample of continuing and 
new contracts and performed the 
following procedures: 

 We read the agreements with 
the customers to identify the 
distinct performance 
obligations, the transaction 
price and its allocation to the 
performance obligations in the 
contract and the classification of 
the contract for the basis of 
revenue recognition in 
accordance with Ind As 115. 
 

 For Fixed maintenance 
contracts, we verified the period 
of the contract with the 
customer agreements and the 
determination of the revenue. 
We verified if the revenue was 
recognized appropriately over 
the period of contract of 
services being rendered and 
whether the revenue recognized 
was based on the estimate of the 
amount of consideration to 
which the Group is entitled in 
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exchange for transferring the 
services. 
 

 For Fixed price contracts, we 
have verified the measurement 
of revenue for the extent of 
delivery of performance 
obligations with the actual and 
estimated cost of efforts as per 
the projected budgets. 
 

 Evaluated the identification of 
performance obligations and the 
prescribed transaction. 

 
of the estimation of contract costs and 
onerous     obligations, if any.  

 We performed analytical procedures as 
applicable for reasonableness of 
revenues disclosed and service 
offerings. 

 We:   
 Assessed that the estimates of 

costs to complete were reviewed 
and approved by appropriate 
designated management 
personnel;   
 

 Performed a retrospective 
analysis of costs incurred with 
estimated costs to identify 
significant variations and 
verified whether those 
variations are required to be 
considered in estimating the 
remaining costs to complete the 
contract; and   
 

 Inspected underlying 
documents and performed 
analytics to determine 
reasonableness of contract 
costs. 

 Our audit procedures included the 
following   
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 We evaluated the  
processes and  controls relating 
to the monitoring of trade 
receivables and review of credit 
risks of customers.  We assessed 
the design and tested the 
operating effectiveness of 
relevant controls in relation to 
the process adopted by 
management for testing the 
impairment of these contract 
assets.  

 
 As a part of substantive audit 

procedures, we tested the ageing 
of contract assets. We examined 
Our audit procedures included 
the following and ability to 
repay the debt based on 
historical payment trends and 
the reason for delay in collection 
of trade receivables including 
any project disputes. Further, we 
assessed the expected credit loss 
impairment and the receipts and 
certification after year-end. We 
assessed the disclosures on the 
contract assets in Note 11 of 
financial statements. 
 

  
Allowance for doubtful debts/ Provision for Expected Credit Loss 

Allowance for doubtful debts was identified as key Audit 
Matter since-  

 
 Receivables comprise a significant portion of the liquid 

assets of the Group. 
 There is an inherent risk around the accuracy of the 

company's trade receivables being appropriately 
provided for, particularly in cases where resolution is in 
progress. 

 The estimation of the allowance for trade receivables 
is a significant judgement area and accordingly is 
therefore considered a key audit matter. 

 

 We assessed the validity of material 
long outstanding receivables by 
considering past payment history and 
unusual patterns to identify 
potentially impaired balances. 

 The assessment of the appropriateness 
of the allowance for trade receivables 
comprised a variety of audit 
procedures including: 

 Verifying the appropriateness 
and reasonableness of the 
assumptions applied in the 

the receivables allowance. 
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 To address the risk of 
management bias, we evaluated 
the results of our procedures 
against audit procedures on 
other key balances to assess 
whether or not there was an 
indication of bias. 
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c) 
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Our opinion is not modified in respect of aforesaid Other Matters. 
 
 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
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For YRKDAJ and Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants  
Firm Registration No.: W100288 
 
 
 
 
 
Rohit Teli 
Partner 
Membership No. 155581 
UDIN : 25155581BMIHXQ2888  
Place: Mumbai 
Date:  18th June, 2025 
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to the members of KHFM Hospitality and Facility Management Services Limited of even date) 

(xxi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, as required by paragraph 3(xxi) the 
we report that the auditors of following companies have highlighted in 

their CARO report on the standalone financial statements of the respective companies included in Consolidated 
Financial statements of the Holding Company. 

 
 

Name of the 
company 

CIN Relationship 
with holding 
company 

Date of 
respective 
audit  report 

Paragraph 
number in the 
respective 
CARO reports 

KHFM 
Hospitality and 
Facility 
Management 
Services Limited 

 
L74930MH2006PLC159290 

Holding Company 18.06.2025 ii(b), vii(a), vii(b) 

 
In respect of the following entities the CARO report relating to them has not been issued by its auditor till the date of  

 
 
Subsidiaries 

1. KHFM and D P Jain Company  

 
Accordingly, no comments for the said subsidiaries have been included for the purpose of reporting under this clause.  

 
For YRKDAJ and Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants  
Firm Registration No.: W100288 
 
 
 
 
 
Rohit Teli 
Partner 
Membership No. 155581 
UDIN: 25155581BMIHXQ2888   
Place: Mumbai 
Date:  18th June, 2025 
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B S REPORT 
 

our 
report to the members of KHFM Hospitality and Facility Management Services Limited of even date) 
 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to the aforesaid Consolidated Financial 
Statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 1   
  

Opinion 

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of KHFM Hospitality & Facility 
Management 
31st March 2025, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the 
Holding Company and such companies incorporated in India under the Companies Act 2013, which are its 
subsidiary companies, as of that date. Reporting under clause (i) of sub section 3 of Section 143 of the Act in 
respect of the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements is 
not applicable to one subsidiary entity, incorporated in India namely KHFM and D P Jain Company (partnership 
firm).  
In our opinion, the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, 
have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with reference to financial 
statements and such internal financial controls system were operating effectively as at March 31st, 2025, with 
the exception of the matters referred in the "emphasis of matter" section of the independent auditor's report 
based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by such 
companies considering the essential components of such internal controls stated in the Guidance Note on Audit 
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 

 
 

 

maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements criteria established by the respective company considering the essential components of internal 
control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance 
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient 

 
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and 
the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act. 
 

Responsibility:  
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards 
on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply 
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate 
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were established and maintained and if such 
controls operated effectively in all material respects. 
 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial 
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controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls 
with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures 

the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in 
terms of their reports is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial 
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements. 
 
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the Financial Statements 

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements 
for external purposes in accor
financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain 
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as 
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with 
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding  
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized ac
have a material effect on the financial statements. 
 
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the Financial Statements 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including 
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error 
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls 
with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls 
with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the 
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

 
For YRKDAJ and Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants  
Firm Registration No.: W100288 
 
 
 
 
 
Rohit Teli 
Partner 
Membership No. 155581 
UDIN: 25155581BMIHXQ2888    
Place: Mumbai 
Date:  18th June, 2025 
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